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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008



TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
Commission File Number 1-5869

SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Florida

11-1385670

(State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

10055 Seminole Blvd.
Seminole, Florida 33772
(Address of Principal Executive Offices, including Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (727) 397-9611

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of Each Class

Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock, par value $.001 per share

Listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: N/A

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.

Yes 
Yes 

No 
No 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes 
No 
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer”, and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer 

Accelerated filer 

Non-accelerated filer 

Smaller Reporting Company 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).

Yes 

No 

At June 30, 2008, the aggregate market value of the registrant’s common shares held by non-affiliates, computed by reference to the last sales
price ($8.71) as reported by the NASDAQ Stock Market, was approximately $39.1 million.
The number of shares outstanding as of February 23, 2009 was 6,049,815 shares.
Documents Incorporated by Reference:
Portions of the Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the conclusion of the
Registrant’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, relating to its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 1, 2009, are incorporated by
reference to furnish the information required by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of Part III and portions of the information required by Item 5 of Part
II.
Exhibit index may be found on Page 42.
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PART I
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
References in this report to “the Company,” “Superior,” “we,” “our,” or “us” mean Superior Uniform Group, Inc. together with its
subsidiaries, except where the context otherwise requires. Certain matters discussed in this Form 10-K are "forward-looking statements"
intended to qualify for the safe harbors from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking
statements can generally be identified as such because the context of the statement will include words such as we “believe,” “anticipate,”
expect” or words of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our future plans, objectives, strategies or goals are also forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that may materially adversely affect the anticipated
results. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following: general economic conditions in the areas of the United States
in which the Company’s customers are located; changes in the healthcare, resort and commercial industries where uniforms and service apparel
are worn; the impact of competition; our ability to successfully integrate operations following consummation of acquisitions; the availability of
manufacturing materials and those risks discussed under Item 1A of this report entitled “Risk Factors.” Shareholders, potential investors and
other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statements made herein and are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements made herein are only made as of the date of this
Form 10-K and we disclaim any obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
Item 1.

Business

Superior Uniform Group, Inc. was organized in 1920 and was incorporated in 1922 as a New York company under the name Superior Surgical
Mfg. Co., Inc. In 1998, the Company changed its name to Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and its state of incorporation to Florida.
Superior, through its Signature marketing brands – Fashion Seal ® , Fashion Seal Healthcare™, Martin's ® , Worklon ® , Universal ® , and
UniVogue™ – manufactures and sells a wide range of uniforms, career apparel and accessories for the hospital and healthcare fields; hotels; fast
food and other restaurants; and public safety, industrial, and commercial markets. There are no significant distinct segments or lines of business.
In excess of 95% of Superior’s business consists of the sale of uniforms and service apparel, and miscellaneous products directly related thereto.
Products
Superior manufactures and sells a wide range of uniforms, corporate identity apparel, career apparel and accessories for the medical and health
fields as well as for the industrial, commercial, leisure, and public safety markets. Its principal products are:
•

Uniforms and service apparel for personnel of:
•

Hospitals and health facilities;

•

Hotels, commercial buildings, residential buildings, and food service facilities;

•

Retail stores;

•

General and special purpose industrial uses;

•

Commercial enterprises (career apparel for banks, airlines, etc.);

•

Public and private safety and security organizations; and
2
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•
•

Miscellaneous service uses.

Miscellaneous products directly related to:
•

Uniforms and service apparel specified above (e.g. boots and sheets); and

•

Linen suppliers and industrial launderers, to whom a substantial portion of Superior's uniforms and service apparel are sold;
such products being primarily industrial laundry bags.

Uniforms and service apparel account for in excess of 95% of net sales; no other single class of product listed above accounts for more than 10%
of net sales.
Competition
Superior competes with more than three dozen firms, including divisions of larger corporations. Superior competes with national and regional
manufacturers which include publicly held companies such as Cintas Corporation, Unifirst Corporation and G&K Services, as well as
ARAMARK – a division of privately-held ARAMARK Corporation. Superior also competes with local firms in most major metropolitan areas.
The nature and degree of competition varies with the customer and the market where it occurs. Industry statistics are not available, but we
believe that Superior is one of the leading suppliers of garments to hospitals and industrial clean rooms, hotels and motels, food service
establishments and uniforms to linen suppliers. Superior experiences competition primarily in the areas of product development, styling and
pricing. We believe that the strength of our brands and marketing, coupled with the quality of our products, allow us to compete effectively.
Customers
Superior has a substantial number of customers, the largest of which accounted for approximately 8% of its 2008 net sales.
Backlog
Although Superior at all times has a substantial backlog of orders, we do not consider this significant since our backlog of orders at any time
consists primarily of recurring firm orders being processed and filled.
Superior normally completes shipments of orders from stock within one week after their receipt. As of February 20, 2009, the backlog of all
orders that we believe to be firm was approximately $4.8 million, compared to approximately $6.5 million as of February 23, 2008.
Inventory
Superior markets itself to its customers as a "stock house." Therefore, Superior at all times carries substantial inventories of raw materials
(principally piece goods) and finished garments which requires substantial working capital. Superior's principal raw materials are textile
products. In 2008 and 2007, approximately 63% and 62%, respectively, of our products were obtained from suppliers located in Central
America. Superior does not believe that it is dependent upon any of its suppliers, despite the concentration of its purchasing from a few sources,
as other suppliers of the same or similar products are readily available. However, if Superior is unable to continue to obtain its products from
Central America it could significantly disrupt Superior’s business.
Intellectual Property
Superior owns and uses several trademarks and service marks relating to its brands that have significant value and are instrumental to its ability
to market its products. Superior’s most significant trademark is its mark "Fashion Seal Uniforms" (presently registered with the United States
Patent and Trademark Office until August 8, 2017). The Fashion Seal Uniforms trademark is critically important to the marketing and operation
of Superior’s business, as more than 50% of Superior's products are sold under that name.
Environmental Matters
In view of the nature of our business, compliance with federal, state, and local laws regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or
otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has had no material effect upon our operations or earnings and we do not expect it to
have a material impact in the future.
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Employees
Superior employed 534 persons, of which 525 were full-time employees, as of December 31, 2008.
Securities Exchange Act Reports
The Company maintains an internet website at the following address: www.superioruniformgroup.com. The information on the Company's
website is not incorporated by reference in this annual report on Form 10-K.
We make available on or through our website certain reports and amendments to those reports that we file with or furnish to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC") in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). These include
our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, and Section 16 filings. We make this
information available on our website free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file the information with, or furnish
it to, the SEC.
Item 1A.

Risk Factors

Our business, operations and financial condition are subject to various risks, and many of those risks are driven by factors that we cannot control
or predict. The following discussion addresses those risks that management believes are the most significant, and you should take these risks into
account in evaluating us or any investment decision involving us. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known or that we currently
believe to be less significant may also adversely affect us.
Risks Relating To Our Industry
We face intense competition within our industry and our revenue may decrease if we are not able to respond to this competition
accordingly.
Customers in the uniform and corporate identity apparel industry choose suppliers primarily based upon the quality, price and breadth of
products offered. We encounter competition from a number of companies in the geographic areas we serve. Major competitors include publicly
held companies such as Cintas Corporation, Unifirst Corporation and G&K Services, as well as ARAMARK – a division of privately-held
ARAMARK Corporation. We also compete with a multitude of regional and local competitors that vary by market. If our existing or future
competitors seek to gain or retain market share by reducing prices, we may be required to lower our prices, which would adversely affect our
operating results . In addition, our competitors generally compete with us for acquisition candidates, which can increase the price for acquisitions
and reduce the number of acquisition candidates available to us.
Regional or national economic slowdowns and high unemployment levels will likely have an adverse effect on our revenues and
operating results.
National or regional economic slowdowns or certain industry specific slowdowns resulting in higher unemployment levels and overall weak
economic conditions generally result in reductions of customers’ employees in uniform that, in turn, adversely affect our revenues. If we are
unable to offset this effect through the addition of new customers (through acquisition or otherwise) or the penetration of existing customers with
a broader mix of product and service offerings, our revenue growth rates will be negatively impacted. Events or conditions in a particular
geographic area, such as adverse weather and other factors, could also hurt our operating results. While we do not believe that our exposure is
greater than that of our competitors, we could be adversely affected by increases in the prices of fabric, natural gas, gasoline, wages, employee
benefits, insurance costs and other components of product cost unless we can recover such increases through increases in the prices for our
products and services. Competitive and general economic conditions might limit our ability and that of our competitors to increase prices to
cover such increases in our product cost.
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Volatility in the global economy could adversely affect results.
Global financial markets have been experiencing an extreme disruption in recent months, including, among other things, volatility in security
prices, diminished liquidity and credit availability, rating downgrades of certain investments and declining valuations of others. However, there
can be no assurance that there will not be further change, which could lead to challenges in our business and negatively impact our financial
results. The current tightening of credit in financial markets adversely affects the ability of our customers and suppliers to obtain financing for
significant purchases and operations and could result in a decrease in orders and spending for our products and services. We are unable to predict
the likely duration and severity of the current disruption in financial markets and adverse economic conditions and the effects they may have on
our business and financial condition.
The uniform and corporate identity apparel industry is subject to pricing pressures that may cause us to lower the prices we charge for
our products and adversely affect our financial performance.
Many of our competitors source their product requirements from developing countries to achieve a lower cost operating environment, possibly in
environments with lower costs than our offshore facilities, and those manufacturers may use these cost savings to reduce prices. To remain
competitive, we must adjust our prices from time to time in response to these industry-wide pricing pressures. Moreover, increased customer
demands for allowances, incentives and other forms of economic support could reduce our gross margins and affect our profitability. Our
financial performance may be negatively affected by these pricing pressures if we are forced to reduce our prices and we cannot reduce our
product costs or if our product costs increase and we cannot increase our prices.
Increases in the price of raw materials used to manufacture our products could materially increase our costs and decrease our
profitability.
The principal fabrics used in our business are made from cotton, wool, silk, synthetic and cotton-synthetic blends. The prices we pay for these
fabrics are dependent on the market price for the raw materials used to produce them, primarily cotton and chemical components of synthetic
fabrics. These raw materials are subject to price volatility caused by weather, supply conditions, government regulations, economic climate,
currency exchange rates, and other unpredictable factors. Fluctuations in petroleum prices may also influence the prices of related items such as
chemicals, dyestuffs and polyester yarn. Any raw material price increase could increase our cost of sales and decrease our profitability unless we
are able to pass higher prices on to our customers. In addition, if one or more of our competitors is able to reduce their production costs by taking
advantage of any reductions in raw material prices or favorable sourcing agreements, we may face pricing pressures from those competitors and
may be forced to reduce our prices or face a decline in net sales, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
Changing international trade regulation and the elimination of quotas on imports of textiles and apparel may increase competition in
our industry. Future quotas, duties or tariffs may increase our costs or limit the amount of products that we can import.
A portion of our operations are subject to quotas imposed by bilateral textile agreements between the countries from which we procure raw
materials and the countries where our products are manufactured. These quotas limit the amount of products that may be imported from a
particular country.
In addition, the countries in which our products are manufactured or into which they are imported may from time to time impose additional new
quotas, duties, tariffs and requirements as to where raw materials must be purchased, additional workplace regulations, or other restrictions on
our imports or adversely modify existing restrictions. Adverse changes in these costs and restrictions could harm our business. We cannot assure
you that future trade agreements will not provide our competitors an advantage over us, or increase our costs, either of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.
Our operations are also subject to various international trade agreements and regulations such as the North American Free Trade Agreement and
the Caribbean Basin Initiative, and the activities and regulations of the World Trade Organization (“WTO”). Generally, these trade agreements
benefit our business by reducing or eliminating the duties and/or quotas assessed on products manufactured in a particular country. However,
trade agreements can also impose requirements that negatively affect our business, such as limiting the countries from which we can purchase
raw materials and setting quotas on products that may be imported into the United States from a particular country. In addition, increased
competition from developing countries could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.
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The corporate identity apparel and uniform industry is subject to changing fashion trends and if we misjudge consumer preferences, the
image of one or more of our brands may suffer and the demand for our products may decrease.
We believe our products are, in general, less subject to fashion trends compared to many other apparel manufacturers because we manufacture
and sell uniforms, corporate identity apparel and other accessories. However, the apparel industry, including uniforms and corporate identity
apparel is subject to shifting customer demands and evolving fashion trends and our success is also dependent upon our ability to anticipate and
promptly respond to these changes. Failure to anticipate, identify or promptly react to changing trends or styles may result in decreased demand
for our products, as well as excess inventories and markdowns, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
and financial condition. In addition, if we misjudge consumer preferences, our brand image may be impaired.
RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS
Our success depends upon the continued protection of our trademarks and other intellectual property rights and we may be forced to
incur substantial costs to maintain, defend, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights.
Our registered and common law trademarks, as well as certain of our licensed trademarks, have significant value and are instrumental to our
ability to market our products. While we own and use several trademarks, our mark “Fashion Seal Uniforms” (presently registered until
August 8, 2017) is important to our business, as more than 50% of our products are sold under that name. We cannot assure you that third parties
will not assert claims against any such intellectual property or that we will be able to successfully resolve all such claims. In addition, although
we seek international protection of our intellectual property, the laws of some foreign countries may not allow us to protect, defend or enforce
our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. We could also incur substantial costs to defend legal actions
relating to use of our intellectual property, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial
condition. In addition, some of our license agreements with third parties will expire by their terms over the next several years. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to negotiate and conclude extensions of such agreements on similar economic terms or at all.
Our customers may cancel or decrease the quantity of their orders, which could negatively impact our operating results.
Although we have long-standing customer relationships, we do not have long-term contracts with many of our customers. Sales to many of our
customers are on an order-by-order basis. If we cannot fill customers’ orders on time, orders may be cancelled and relationships with customers
may suffer, which could have an adverse effect on us, especially if the relationship is with a major customer. Furthermore, if any of our
customers experience a significant downturn in their business, or fail to remain committed to our programs or brands, the customer may reduce
or discontinue purchases from us. The reduction in the amount of our products purchased by several of our major customers could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.
In addition, some of our customers have experienced significant changes and difficulties, including consolidation of ownership, increased
centralization of buying decisions, restructurings, bankruptcies and liquidations. A significant adverse change in a customer relationship or in a
customer’s financial position could cause us to limit or discontinue business with that customer, require us to assume more credit risk relating to
that customer’s receivables or limit our ability to collect amounts related to previous purchases by that customer, all of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.
We have significant pension obligations with respect to our employees and our available cash flow may be adversely affected in the event
that payments became due under any pension plans that are unfunded or underfunded.
A portion of our active and retired employees participate in defined benefit pension plans under which we are obligated to provide prescribed
levels of benefits regardless of the value of the underlying assets, if any, of the applicable pension plan. If our obligations under a plan are
unfunded or underfunded, we will have to use cash flow from operations and other sources to pay our obligations either as they become due or
over some shorter funding period. As of December 31, 2008, we had approximately $7.1 million in unfunded or underfunded obligations related
to our pension plans.
6
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We may undertake acquisitions to expand our business, which may pose risks to our business.
We selectively pursue acquisitions from time to time as part of our growth strategy. We compete with others within our industry for suitable
acquisition candidates. This competition may increase the price for acquisitions and reduce the number of acquisition candidates available to us.
As a result, acquisition candidates may not be available to us in the future on favorable terms. Even if we are able to acquire businesses on
favorable terms, managing growth through acquisition is a difficult process that includes integration and training of personnel, combining plant
and operating procedures, and additional matters related to the integration of acquired businesses within our existing organization. Unanticipated
issues related to integration may result in additional expense or in disruption to our operations, either of which could negatively impact our
ability to achieve anticipated benefits. While we believe we will be able to fully integrate acquired businesses, we can give no assurance that we
will be successful in this regard.
We are subject to local laws and regulations.
We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting our business, including those promulgated under the Occupational Safety
and Health Act, the Consumer Product Safety Act, the Flammable Fabrics Act, the Textile Fiber Product Identification Act, the rules and
regulations of the Consumer Products Safety Commission and various labor, workplace and related laws, as well as environmental laws and
regulations. Failure to comply with such laws may expose us to potential liability and have an adverse effect on our results of operations.
Shortages of supply of sourced goods from suppliers or interruptions in our manufacturing could adversely affect our results of
operations.
We utilize multiple supply sources and manufacturing facilities. However, an unexpected interruption in any of the sources or facilities could
temporarily adversely affect our results of operations until alternate sources or facilities can be secured. In 2008 and 2007 approximately 63%
and 62%, respectively, of our products were obtained from suppliers located in Central America. If we are unable to continue to obtain our
products from Central America, it could significantly disrupt our business. Because we source products in Central America, we are affected by
economic conditions in Central America, including increased duties, possible employee turnover, labor unrest and lack of developed
infrastructure.
Our business may be impacted by adverse weather.
Our corporate headquarters and a substantial number of our customers are located in Florida. During fiscal 2005, four hurricanes made land-fall
in Florida, with Hurricane Wilma moving directly through South Florida and causing significant infrastructure damage and disruption to the
area. Sales of our products were adversely affected by these and the other Gulf Coast hurricanes during fiscal 2005. While we were not impacted
by any hurricane related events during fiscal 2007 or 2008, because we are located in Florida, which is a hurricane-sensitive area, we are
particularly susceptible to the risk of damage to, or total destruction of, our headquarters and surrounding transportation infrastructure caused by
a hurricane. In addition, similar disruptions to the business of our customers located in areas affected by hurricanes may adversely impact sales
of our products.
Certain of our existing stockholders have significant control.
At December 31, 2008, our executive officers and certain of their family members collectively beneficially owned 34.5% of our outstanding
common stock. As a result, our executive officers and certain of their family members have significant influence over the election of our Board
of Directors, the approval or disapproval of any other matters requiring stockholder approval, and the affairs and policies of our company.
The success of our business depends on our ability to attract and retain qualified employees.
We need talented and experienced personnel in a number of areas including our core business activities. An inability to retain and attract
qualified personnel, especially our key executives, could harm our business.
Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2.

Properties

The Company has an ongoing program designed to maintain and improve its facilities. Generally, all properties are in satisfactory condition. The
Company's properties are currently fully utilized (except as otherwise noted) and have aggregate productive capacity to meet the Company's
present needs as well as those of the foreseeable future. The material manufacturing and distribution locales are rented for nominal amounts due
to cities providing incentives for businesses to locate in their area—all such properties may be purchased for nominal amounts. As a result, it is
believed that the subject lease expirations and renewal terms thereof are not material. Set forth below are the locations of our facilities:
•

Seminole, Florida – Plant of approximately 60,000 square feet owned by the Company; used as principal administrative office and
for warehousing and shipping, as well as the corporate design center.

•

Eudora, Arkansas – Plant of approximately 217,000 square feet, partially leased from the City of Eudora requiring payment of only a
nominal rental fee; used for manufacturing, warehousing, and shipping; lease expiring in 2011.

•

Tampa, Florida – Plant of approximately 15,000 square feet, leased from private owners; used for warehousing, shipping and
customer service for customers located in the greater Tampa Bay area; lease expiring in 2010.

•

McGehee, Arkansas – Plant of approximately 26,000 square feet, leased from the City of McGehee requiring payment of only a
nominal rental fee; used for storage; lease expiring in 2009.

•

San Salvador, El Salvador – Office space of approximately 16,000 square feet; owned by The Office Gurus, a subsidiary of Superior
Office Solutions and Fashion Seal Corp., wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company; used as office space.

•

Miscellaneous – Atlanta, Georgia: leased warehouse and sales office of approximately 10,000 square feet – lease expiring in 2010;
Lexington, Mississippi: facility used for warehousing and shipping, approximately 40,000 square feet – owned by the Company;
Hamburg, Arkansas: approximately 18,000 square feet, used for shipping – owned by the Company; Dallas, Texas: leased sales
office of approximately 2,055 square feet – lease expiring in 2010.

Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

We are a party to certain lawsuits in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate,
will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None
PART II
Item 5.

Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

The principal market on which Superior's common shares are traded is the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol “SGC”; said shares have
also been admitted to unlisted trading on the Midwest Stock Exchange.
The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices and cash dividends declared on our common stock by quarter for 2008 and 2007 as
reported in the consolidated transaction reporting system of the NASDAQ Stock Market (2008) and American Stock Exchange (2007-2008).
8
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QUARTER ENDED
Mar. 31

2008
June 30
Sept. 30

Dec. 31

Mar. 31

2007
June 30
Sept. 30

Dec. 31

Common Shares:
High

$10.64

$10.16

$10.82

$10.60

$13.54

$13.46

$13.30

$13.60

Low

$ 8.13

$ 8.21

$ 8.46

$ 6.80

$12.35

$12.35

$10.41

$ 9.38

Dividends (total for 2008-$0.54; 2007-$0.54)

$0.135

$0.135

$0.135

$0.135

$0.135

$0.135

$0.135

$0.135

We declared cash dividends of $0.135 per share in each of the quarters for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2007 and 2008. We intend to
pay regular quarterly distributions to our common stockholders, the amount of which may change from time to time. Future distributions will be
declared and paid at the discretion of our Board of Directors, and will depend upon cash generated by operating activities, our financial
condition, capital requirements, and such other factors as our Board of Directors deem relevant.
On February 23, 2009, we had 179 shareholders of record and the closing price for our common shares on the NASDAQ Stock Market was
$6.90 per share.
Information regarding the Company’s equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in Item 12 of Part III
of this report under the section entitled “Equity Compensation Plans.”
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The table below sets forth the information with respect to purchases made by or on behalf of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. or any “affiliated
purchaser” (as defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange Act), of our common shares during the three months ended December 31, 2008.
(c) Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

(d) Maximum Number
of Shares that May Yet

Period

Month #1
(October 1, 2008 to October 31,
2008)
Month #2
(November 1, 2008 to
November 30, 2008)
Month #3
(December 1, 2008 to
December 31, 2008)
TOTAL
(1)

(a) Total Number of Shares

(b) Average Price Paid

Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or

Purchased

per Share

Programs

341,712

$

9.24

341,712

8,122

$

9.50

8,122

11,110
360,944

$
$

8.24
9.22

11,110
360,944

Be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs
(1)

588,615

In May 2006, the Board of Directors reset the common stock repurchase program authorization so that the Company could make future
repurchases of up to 750,000 of its common shares. Through July 31, 2008, the Company repurchased 625,881 shares of its common stock
under such repurchase program. On August 1, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors reset the common stock repurchase program
authorization to allow for the repurchase of 1,000,000 additional shares of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock. There is no
expiration date or other restriction governing the period over which we can make our share repurchases under the program. All such
purchases were open market transactions.
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Item 6.

Selected Financial Data

The following selected data is derived from our consolidated financial statements. This data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto incorporated into Item 8, and with Item 7— Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Years Ended December 31,
2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

$123,745,201

$120,457,891

$123,714,773

$128,068,824

$135,844,749

83,402,581
34,263,750
1,617,411
321,126
—
119,604,868

80,837,592
33,784,794
—
329,674
—
114,952,060

84,385,588
33,983,449
—
451,026
—
118,820,063

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes on
income
Taxes on income

4,140,333
1,850,000

5,505,831
1,810,000

4,894,710
1,830,000

2,514,829
600,000

8,663,621
2,940,000

Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net earnings

2,290,333
(156,560)
2,133,773

3,064,710
(867,443)
2,197,267

1,914,829
(670,644)
1,244,185

5,723,621
(344,934)
5,378,687

Net sales
Costs and expenses:
Cost of goods sold
Selling and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment loss
Interest expense
Gain on sale of facility

3,695,831
(1,146,503)
$ 2,549,328

$

0.35
(0.02)
0.33

$

0.56
(0.18)
0.38

$

$
$

0.55
(0.17)
0.38

$

$

0.35
(0.02)
0.33

Cash dividends per common share

$

0.54

$

0.54

At year end:
Total assets
Long-term debt
Working capital
Shareholders’ equity

$ 79,591,277
$ 3,379,000
$ 55,801,578
$ 60,694,873

Per Share Data:
Basic
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net earnings
Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net earnings

$

$
$
$
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$

$ 87,903,512
$ 2,445,604
$ 59,251,139
$ 72,445,430

89,674,453
35,920,705
—
610,781
(651,944)
125,553,995

$

0.45
(0.13)
0.32

$

$

$

0.45
(0.13)
0.32

$

0.54

$

$ 85,158,774
$ 2,201,806
$ 56,411,002
$ 72,102,191

91,025,370
35,531,559
—
624,199
—
127,181,128

$

0.26
(0.09)
0.17

$

$

$

0.26
(0.09)
0.17

$

0.76
(0.05)
0.71

$

0.54

$

0.54

$

$ 97,261,057
$ 3,979,540
$ 58,922,055
$ 81,524,754

$

0.77
(0.05)
0.72

$107,954,243
$ 5,662,569
$ 61,255,572
$ 87,068,494
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Item 7.

Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW : In 2008, net sales increased by 2.7% in comparison to 2007 and in 2007, net sales decreased by 2.6% in comparison to 2006.
The increase in net sales in 2008 was primarily attributed to several large new customer uniform programs that were distributed in 2008. The
positive impact of these new programs was offset by softer demand from existing customers due to the current economic downturn occurring in
the United States. Our customers are reducing employee counts as a result of the current environment and this is expected to continue to
negatively impact sales results in 2009.
OPERATIONS : In 2008, net sales increased 2.7% in comparison to 2007. The increase in net sales is primarily attributed to several large new
customer uniform programs that were distributed in 2008 offset by softer demand from existing customers. In 2007, net sales decreased 2.6% in
comparison to 2006. The decrease in net sales was primarily attributed to the elimination of the uniform program at one of our major customers
in the fourth quarter of 2006. This resulted in a decrease of approximately $2,917,000 in net sales for 2007. During 2007, we were awarded
additional business from this customer that began shipping late in the second quarter. This resulted in net sales of approximately $1,422,000 in
2007. Additionally, demand from existing customers was lower than expected and more than offset the new business generated in 2007. The
remainder of the decrease was attributed to customers lost as a result of the 2005 implementation of our new warehouse management system that
resulted in disruptions to our service levels with customers during the first half of 2005. Certain of these lost customers were still winding down
purchases from the Company during the first half of 2006.
As a percentage of sales, cost of goods sold was 67.4% in 2008, and 67.1% in 2007. The percentage increase in 2008 as compared to 2007 is
primarily attributed to an increase in direct product costs as a percentage of sales (0.9%) offset by the impact of more efficient operations in our
value added services area and spreading our overhead over higher net sales (-0.6%). The Company’s gross margins may not be comparable with
other entities, since some entities include all of the costs related to their distribution network in cost of goods sold. As disclosed in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company includes a portion of the costs associated with its distribution network in selling and
administrative expenses. The amounts included in selling and administrative expenses for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, were $7,353,914, and $7,323,836.
As a percentage of sales, selling and administrative expenses were 27.7% in 2008 and 28.0% in 2007. The decrease in percentage in 2008 as
compared to 2007 is attributed to increased sales volume (-0.7%) offset by miscellaneous increases in other selling and administrative expenses
in excess of the percentage increase in net sales.
In connection with the preparation of the Company’s audited financial statements for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, the Company
completed its annual evaluation of goodwill in accordance with FAS No. 142. As a result, the Company recognized a goodwill impairment loss
of $1,617,411 in the fourth quarter of 2008. The decline in fair value that resulted in the impairment was primarily attributed to the significant
economic downturn currently being experienced in the United States. After recognition of this impairment loss, there is no goodwill remaining
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008.
Interest expense as a percentage of sales was 0.3% in 2008 and 2007.
The effective income tax rate in 2008 was 44.7% and in 2007 was 32.9%. The increase in 2008 is primarily due to the non-deductible portion of
the goodwill impairment loss (6.1%) and the impact of the change in unrecognized tax benefits (6.8%). The 2007 tax provision included the
results of an audit of our federal tax returns for 2004 and 2005 as well as the expiration of the statute of limitations on various other uncertain tax
positions. There were no significant amounts of this nature included in the 2008 tax provision.
The Company reported losses from discontinued operations of 0.1% and 1.0% of sales for the years 2008 and 2007, respectively. As discussed
above, during the fourth quarter of 2007, we made a decision to divest Sope Creek. At the beginning of February 2008, we sold the operations of
Sope Creek. As a result, we classified the assets of Sope Creek as held for sale at December 31, 2007 and marked them down to their estimated
fair value less selling costs. Additionally, we reclassified the results of operations of Sope Creek to loss from discontinued operations in the
consolidated statements of earnings. We do not expect any further losses from the discontinued operations of Sope Creek.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES : The Company uses a number of standards for its own purposes in measuring its liquidity, such
as: working capital, profitability ratios, long-term debt as a percentage of long-term debt and equity, and activity ratios.
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Accounts receivable decreased 6.5% from $18,670,466 on December 31, 2007 to $17,464,279 as of December 31, 2008. The decrease is
primarily attributed to improvement in the aging of customer accounts as well as a decline in net sales during the fourth quarter of 2008.
Inventories decreased 6.6% from $46,463,662 on December 31, 2007 to $43,410,146 as of December 31, 2008. The decrease is primarily
attributed to increases in inventory levels in 2007 in preparation for implementing several large new customer programs during the first part of
2008.
Prepaid expenses and other current assets decreased 26.5% from $3,525,114 on December 31, 2007 to $2,590,350 as of December 31, 2008.
$505,000 of this decrease is attributed to a decrease in deposits for inventory paid for in advance of receipt and $280,000 is due to a decrease in
refundable income taxes in the current year. The remainder of the fluctuation is attributed to a decrease in prepaid general expenses.
Other assets decreased 88.2% from $2,204,434 on December 31, 2007 to $260,039 as of December 31, 2008. This decrease is primarily
attributed to the decrease in the amount of pension assets recognized in other assets of $1,937,000.
Accounts payable decreased 30.3% from $6,635,412 on December 31, 2007 to $4,626,789 on December 31, 2008 primarily due to lower
inventory purchases in the current year.
Other current liabilities decreased 1.2% from $2,549,680 on December 31, 2007 to $2,518,956 on December 31, 2008.
Long-term pension liability increased 664.3% from $923,184 on December 31, 2007 to $7,056,055 on December 31, 2008 as a result of the
significant decline in the fair value of the pension plan assets in the current year. The Company plans to contribute $1,000,000 to its defined
benefit pension plans in 2009.
Cash flows related to discontinued operations are not segregated in the statements of cash flows. Cash flows from operating activities related to
discontinued operations were insignificant in 2008 and were approximately $155,000 in 2007. Cash flows used in investing and financing
activities for discontinued operations were insignificant in 2008 and 2007.
The working capital of the Company at December 31, 2008 was approximately $55,802,000 and the working capital ratio was 8.2:1. At
December 31, 2007 the working capital of the Company was approximately $59,251,000 and the working capital ratio was 6.5:1. The Company
has operated without hindrance or restraint with its present working capital, believing that income generated from operations and outside sources
of credit, both trade and institutional, are more than adequate to fund the Company’s operations.
In 2008, the Company's percentage of total debt to total debt and equity was 6.2%. In 2007 the Company's percentage of total debt to total debt
and equity was 5.2%.
The Company has an on-going capital expenditure program designed to maintain and improve its facilities. Capital expenditures were
approximately $2,271,000 and $1,163,000, in the years 2008 and 2007, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company paid cash dividends of approximately $3,494,000 and $3,591,000,
respectively, resulting from a quarterly dividend of $.135 per share. In May 2006, the Board of Directors reset the common stock repurchase
program authorization so that the Company could make future repurchases of up to 750,000 of its common shares. Through July 31, 2008, the
Company repurchased 625,881 shares of its common stock under such repurchase program. On August 1, 2008, the Company’s Board of
Directors reset the common stock repurchase program authorization to allow for the repurchase of 1,000,000 additional shares of the Company’s
outstanding shares of common stock. The Company reacquired and retired 617,096 shares and 0 shares of its common stock in the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, with approximate costs of $5,712,000, and $0, respectively. At December 31, 2008, the Company
had 588,615 shares remaining on its common stock repurchase authorization. Shares purchased under our share repurchase program are
constructively retired and returned to unissued status. We consider several factors in determining when to make share repurchases, including
among other things, our cost of equity, our after-tax cost of borrowing, our debt to total capitalization targets and our expected future cash needs.
There is no expiration date or other restriction governing the period over which we can make our share repurchases under the program. The
Company anticipates that it will continue to pay dividends and that it will repurchase additional shares of its common stock in the future as
financial conditions permit.
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In 2008, cash and cash equivalents decreased by approximately $637,000. This decrease is attributed to approximately $10,426,000 in cash
provided from operations, offset by approximately $1,919,000 utilized in investing activities, as well as approximately $9,144,000 utilized in
financing activities. Investing activities consisted primarily of capital expenditures, including approximately $1,268,000 spent to purchase an
office building in El Salvador. Financing activities consisted primarily of dividends paid and the repurchase of approximately $5,712,000 of
Company stock, as discussed above, which were offset by debt proceeds of approximately $33,000.
In 2007, cash and cash equivalents decreased by approximately $3,151,000. This decrease was attributed to approximately $839,000 in cash
provided from operations, offset by approximately $1,004,000 utilized in investing activities, as well as approximately $2,986,000 utilized in
financing activities. Investing activities consisted primarily of capital expenditures. Financing activities consisted primarily of dividends paid, as
discussed above, which were offset by debt proceeds of approximately $17,000 and approximately $562,000 in proceeds from the exercise of
employee stock options.
On March 26, 1999, the Company entered into a 3-year credit agreement with Wachovia Bank that made available to the Company up to
$15,000,000 on a revolving credit basis. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 0.60% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based
borrowings (4.4% at December 31, 2008). The Company pays an annual commitment fee of 0.15% on the average unused portion of the
commitment. The available balance under the credit agreement is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2008, $3,379,000
was outstanding on the revolver and approximately $85,000 was outstanding under letters of credit. On March 27, 2001, on April 27, 2004, and
again on June 25, 2007, the Company entered into agreements with Wachovia Bank to extend the maturity of the revolving credit agreement.
The revolving credit agreement matures on June 30, 2010. At the option of the Company, any outstanding balance on the agreement at that date
will convert to a one-year term loan. The remaining terms of the original revolving credit agreement remain unchanged. The Company also
entered into a $12,000,000 10-year term loan on March 26, 1999 with the same bank. The term loan is an amortizing loan, with monthly
payments of principal and interest, maturing on April 1, 2009. The term loan carries a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.80% based upon the
one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based borrowings. Concurrent with the execution of the term loan agreement, the Company entered into
an interest rate swap with the bank under which the Company receives a variable rate of interest on a notional amount equal to the outstanding
balance of the term loan from the bank and the Company pays a fixed rate of 6.75% on a notional amount equal to the outstanding balance of the
term loan to the bank.
The credit agreement and the term loan with Wachovia contain restrictive provisions concerning liabilities to tangible net worth ratio (.75:1),
other borrowings, capital expenditures, working capital ratio (2.5:1), and fixed charges coverage ratio (2.5:1). The Company is in full
compliance with all terms, conditions and covenants of the various credit agreements.
With funds from the credit agreement, anticipated cash flows generated from operations and other credit sources readily available, the Company
believes that its liquidity is satisfactory, its working capital adequate and its capital resources sufficient for funding its ongoing capital
expenditure program and its operations, including planned expansion for 2009.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS :
The Company does not engage in any off-balance sheet financing arrangements. In particular, we do not have any interest in variable interest
entities, which include special purpose entities and structured finance entities.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES :
Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10K. Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of the financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate the estimates that we have made. These estimates are based
upon our historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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Our critical accounting estimates are those that we believe require our most significant judgments about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain. A discussion of our critical accounting estimates, the underlying judgments and uncertainties used to make them and the likelihood
that materially different estimates would be reported under different conditions or using different assumptions is as follows:
Allowance for Losses on Accounts Receivable
These allowances are based on both recent trends of certain customers estimated to be a greater credit risk as well as general trends of the entire
customer pool. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required. An additional impairment in value of one percent of net accounts receivable would require an
increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts and would result in additional expense of approximately $175,000. The Company’s
concentration of risk is also monitored and at year-end 2008, the largest outstanding customer account balance was $2,357,000 and the five
largest account balances totaled $5,857,000.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the likelihood that new goods on
hand can be sold to customers. Historical inventory usage and current revenue trends are considered in estimating both excess and obsolete
inventories. If actual product demand and market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory writedowns may be required.
Goodwill Impairment
The Company had $1,617,000 of goodwill on its consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008, prior to the completion of our year-end
impairment testing. The review of fair value involves judgment and estimates of discount rates, transaction multiples and future cash flows for
the reporting unit that may be impacted by future sales and operating results for the reporting unit, market conditions and economic conditions.
The Company analyzed various discount rates, transaction multiples and cash flows for the reporting unit. As a result of these calculations, we
determined that the remaining goodwill was fully impaired and the Company took a charge as a goodwill impairment loss in the amount of
$1,617,000. There is no goodwill remaining on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008.
Insurance
The Company self-insures for certain obligations related to health insurance programs. The Company also purchases stop-loss insurance policies
to protect it from catastrophic losses. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the potential value associated with reported claims and
for losses that have occurred, but have not been reported. The Company's estimates consider historical claim experience and other factors. The
Company's liabilities are based on estimates, and, while the Company believes that the accrual for loss is adequate, the ultimate liability may be
in excess of or less than the amounts recorded. Changes in claim experience, the Company's ability to settle claims or other estimates and
judgments used by management could have a material impact on the amount and timing of expense for any period.
Pensions
The Company’s pension obligations are determined using estimates including those related to discount rates, asset values and changes in
compensation. The discount rates used for the Company’s pension plans of 5.99% to 6.13%, were determined based on the Citigroup Pension
Yield Curve. This rate was selected as the best estimate of the rate at which the benefit obligations could be effectively settled on the
measurement date taking into account the nature and duration of the benefit obligations of the plan using high-quality fixed-income investments
currently available (rated AA or better) and expected to be available during the period to maturity of the benefits. The 8% expected return on
plan assets was determined based on historical long-term investment returns as well as future expectations given target investment asset
allocations and current economic conditions. The 4.5% rate of compensation increase represents the long-term assumption for expected increases
in salaries among continuing active participants accruing benefits under the plans. In 2008, a reduction in the expected return on plan assets of
0.25% would have resulted in additional expense of approximately $45,000, while a reduction in the discount rate of 0.25% would have resulted
in additional expense of approximately $90,000 and would have reduced the funded status by $730,000 for the Company’s defined benefit
pension plans. Interest rates and pension plan valuations may vary significantly based on worldwide economic conditions and asset investment
decisions.
Income Taxes
The Company is required to estimate and record income taxes payable for federal and state jurisdictions in which the Company operates. This
process involves estimating actual current tax expense and assessing temporary differences resulting from differing accounting treatment
between tax and book that result in deferred tax assets and liabilities. In addition, accruals are also estimated for federal and state tax matters for
which deductibility is subject to interpretation. Taxes payable and the related deferred tax differences may be impacted by changes to tax laws,
changes in tax rates and changes in taxable profits and losses. Reserves are also estimated for uncertain tax positions
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that are currently unresolved. The Company routinely monitors the potential impact of such situations and believes that it is properly reserved.
For the year ending December 31, 2008, we recognized a net increase in total unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $62,000, primarily as a
result of tax positions related to 2008. As of December 31, 2008, we had an accrued liability of $665,000 for unrecognized tax benefits. We
accrue interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense, and the related liability is included in the total liability
for unrecognized tax benefits under FIN 48.
Share-based Compensation
We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) (“FAS No. 123R”) on January 1, 2006. FAS 123R requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair
values. This statement revises FAS 123, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25. Share-based compensation expense
that was recorded in 2008 and 2007 includes the compensation expense for the share-based payments granted in those years. In our share-based
compensation strategy we utilize a combination of stock options and stock appreciation rights (“SARS”) that fully vest on the date of grant.
Therefore, the fair value of the options and SARS granted is recognized as expense on the date of grant. We used the Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model to value any share-based compensation under FAS 123R. Option valuation methods, including Black-Scholes-Merton, require
the input of assumptions including the risk free interest rate, dividend rate, expected term and volatility rate. The Company determines the
assumptions to be used based upon current economic conditions. The impact of changing any of the individual assumptions by 10% would not
have a material impact on the recorded expense.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“FAS No. 157”). FAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements required under other accounting pronouncements,
but does not change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. We have adopted FASB Staff Position 157-2,
Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP No. 157-2”), issued February 2008, and as a result we applied the provisions of FAS No. 157
that are applicable as of January 1, 2008, which had no material effect on our consolidated financial statements. FSP No. 157-2 delays the
effective date of SFAS 157 for certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities until January 1, 2009.
In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ FAS No. 159”) which
permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be
measured at fair value. FAS No. 159 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The adoption of FAS No. 159 has not had a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements.
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (FAS No. 141(R)), Business Combinations , which is a revision of FAS
No. 141, Business Combinations . The primary requirements of FAS No. 141(R) are as follows: (I.) Upon initially obtaining control, the
acquiring entity in a business combination must recognize 100% of the fair values of the acquired assets, including goodwill, and assumed
liabilities, with only limited exceptions even if the acquirer has not acquired 100% of its target. As a consequence, the current step acquisition
model will be eliminated. (II.) Contingent consideration arrangements will be fair valued at the acquisition date and included on that basis in the
purchase price consideration. The concept of recognizing contingent consideration at a later date when the amount of that consideration is
determinable beyond a reasonable doubt, will no longer be applicable. (III.) All transaction costs will be expensed as incurred. FAS No. 141
(R) is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. Adoption is prospective and early adoption
is not permitted. The Company does not believe the adoption of this standard will have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.
A variety of proposed or otherwise potential accounting standards are currently under study by standard-setting organizations and various
regulatory agencies. Because of the tentative and preliminary nature of these proposed standards, management has not determined whether
implementation of such proposed standards would be material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Item 7a.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable.
Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Years Ended December 31,
Net sales
Costs and expenses:
Cost of goods sold
Selling and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment loss
Interest expense
Earnings from continuing operations before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits of $90,000 and $680,000, respectively
Net earnings
Per Share Data:
Basic
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings
Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings
Cash dividends per common share

2008

2007

$123,745,201

$120,457,891

83,402,581
34,263,750
1,617,411
321,126
119,604,868
4,140,333
1,850,000
2,290,333
(156,560)
$ 2,133,773

80,837,592
33,784,794
—
329,674
114,952,060
5,505,831
1,810,000
3,695,831
(1,146,503)
$ 2,549,328

$

0.35
(0.02)
0.33

$

0.35
(0.02)
0.33
0.54

$

$
$
$
$

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$
$

0.56
(0.18)
0.38
0.55
(0.17)
0.38
0.54
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Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,
2008

2007

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $575,000 and $490,000, respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Assets held for sale
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
GOODWILL
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER ASSETS

$

133,152
17,464,279
43,410,146
2,590,350
—
63,597,927
12,587,454
—
535,857
2,610,000
260,039
$79,591,277

$

769,715
18,670,466
46,463,662
3,525,114
558,476
69,987,433
13,320,218
1,617,411
774,016
—
2,204,434
$87,903,512

$ 4,626,789
2,518,956
650,604
7,796,349
3,379,000
7,056,055
665,000
—

$ 6,635,412
2,549,680
1,551,202
10,736,294
2,445,604
923,184
603,000
750,000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debt
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM DEBT
LONG-TERM PENSION LIABILITY
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 10 and 11)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $1 par value—authorized 300,000 shares (none issued)
Common stock, $.001 par value—authorized 50,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding—6,056,754 and
6,670,650, respectively.
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Cash flow hedges
Pensions
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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6,056
15,486,181
50,641,401

6,670
16,763,987
56,178,511

(5,000)
(5,433,765)
60,694,873
$79,591,277

(30,000)
(473,738)
72,445,430
$87,903,512
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Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31,
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Common

Balance, January 1, 2007
Common shares issued upon exercise of options
Share-based compensation expense
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Common shares received for exercise of stock
options
Cash dividends declared ($.54 per share)
Comprehensive Income:
Net earnings
Net change during the period related to:
Cash flow hedges
Pensions, net of taxes of $236,000
Comprehensive Income
Adjustment to initially apply FIN 48
Balance, December 31, 2007
Common shares issued upon exercise of options
Share-based compensation expense
Purchase and retirement of common shares
Cash dividends declared ($.54 per share)
Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Net earnings
Net change during the period related to:
Cash flow hedges
Pensions, net of tax benefit of $2,826,000
Comprehensive Loss:
Adjustment to change measurement date per FAS
No. 158, net of tax benefit of $21,000
Balance, December 31, 2008

Common
Shares

Stock

6,604,844
101,850

$ 6,605
101

(36,044)

(36)

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$15,235,448
1,046,102
539,915
27,000
(84,478)

Retained
Earnings

(Loss) Income,
net of tax

$57,753,587

$ (893,449)

$ 6,670
3

(617,096)

(617)

$16,763,987
29,165
263,146
(1,570,117)

(484,617)
(3,591,301)

2,549,328

2,549,328

(133,000)
$56,178,511

$ (503,738)

(4,141,639)
(3,493,707)
2,133,773

$ 6,056

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$15,486,181

(35,537)
$50,641,401

6,000
383,711
2,939,039
(133,000)
$72,445,430
29,168
263,146
(5,712,373)
(3,493,707)
2,133,773

25,000
(4,960,027)

6,056,754

$72,102,191
1,046,203
539,915
27,000

(400,103)
(3,591,301)

6,000
383,711

6,670,650
3,200

Total
Shareholders’
Equity

$ (5,438,765)

25,000
(4,960,027)
(2,801,254)
(35,537)
$60,694,873

Table of Contents
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31,
2008

2007

$ 2,133,773

$ 2,549,328

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debts
Share-based compensation expense
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Goodwill impairment loss
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Long-term pension liability
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash flows provided from operating activities

3,235,980
190,000
263,146
(513,000)
(16,266)
1,617,411

3,358,646
88,000
539,915
29,000
(77,215)
—

1,016,187
3,053,516
1,106,796
2,001,285
(2,008,623)
(5,724)
(1,709,693)
62,000
10,426,788

2,128,833
(8,849,134)
(179,440)
(751,676)
1,609,431
603,552
(185,039)
(25,000)
839,201

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other assets
Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale
Proceeds from notes receivable collections
Net cash used in investing activities

(2,271,090)
22,299
10,000
233,870
85,684
(1,919,237)

(1,162,745)
148,437
9,995
—
—
(1,004,313)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Payment of cash dividends
Proceeds received on exercise of stock options
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Common stock reacquired and retired
Net cash used in financing activities

66,875,000
(66,842,202)
(3,493,707)
29,168
—
(5,712,373)
(9,144,114)

18,643,000
(18,625,734)
(3,591,301)
561,586
27,000
—
(2,985,449)

(636,563)
769,715
133,152

(3,150,561)
3,920,276
$
769,715

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents balance, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents balance, end of year

$

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
a) Business description
Superior Uniform Group ® , through its Signature marketing brands – Fashion Seal ® , Fashion Seal Healthcare™, Martin’s ® , Worklon ® , and
UniVogue™ – manufactures and sells a wide range of uniforms, image apparel and accessories, primarily in domestic markets. Superior
specializes in managing comprehensive uniform programs, and is dedicated to servicing the Healthcare, Hospitality, Restaurant/Food Services,
Retail Employee I.D., Governmental/Public Safety, Entertainment, Commercial, and Cleanroom markets.
b) Basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries Fashion Seal
Corporation and Superior Office Solutions, and their jointly owned subsidiary, The Office Gurus. Intercompany items have been eliminated in
consolidation.
c) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents.
d) Revenue recognition and allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company recognizes revenue as products are shipped and title passes. The Company collects sales tax for various taxing authorities. It is the
Company’s policy to record these amounts on a net basis. Therefore, these amounts are not included in net sales for the Company. A provision
for estimated returns and allowances is recorded based upon historical experience and current allowance programs. Judgments and estimates are
used in determining the collectability of accounts receivable. The Company analyzes specific accounts receivable and historical bad debt
experience, customer credit worthiness, current economic trends and the age of outstanding balances when evaluating the adequacy of the
allowance for doubtful accounts. Management judgments and estimates are used in connection with establishing the allowance in any accounting
period. Changes in estimates are reflected in the period they become known. Charge-offs of accounts receivable are made once all collection
efforts have been exhausted. If the financial condition of the Company's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be required.
e) Advertising expenses
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, were
$135,373 and $195,465.
f) Cost of goods sold and shipping and handling fees and costs
Cost of goods sold consists primarily of direct costs of acquiring inventory, including cost of merchandise, inbound freight charges, purchasing
and receiving costs, inspection costs, and warehousing costs. Additionally, the Company follows EITF 00-10, Accounting for Shipping and
Handling Fees and Costs, which requires shipping and handling fees billed to customers to be classified as revenue and shipping and handling
costs to be either classified as cost of sales or disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Company includes shipping and handling
fees billed to customers in net sales. Shipping and handling costs associated with out-bound freight are generally recorded in cost of goods sold.
Other shipping and handling costs are included in selling and administrative expenses and totaled $7,353,914 and $7,323,836 for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
g) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the
likelihood that goods on hand can be sold to customers. Historical inventory usage and current revenue trends are considered in estimating both
excess and obsolete inventories. If actual product demand and market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management,
additional inventory write-downs may be required.
h) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and repairs
which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed currently. Costs of assets sold or retired and the related
accumulated depreciation and amortization are eliminated from accounts and the net gain or loss is reflected in the statement of earnings within
selling and administrative expenses.
i) Goodwill and other intangible assets
The Company follows FAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets , which addresses the financial accounting and reporting standards

for the acquisition of intangible assets outside of a business combination and for goodwill and other intangible assets subsequent to their
acquisition. This accounting standard requires that goodwill be separately disclosed from other intangible assets in the consolidated balance
sheets and no longer be amortized
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but tested for impairment on a periodic basis. We annually evaluate the recoverability of goodwill and take into account events or circumstances
that warrant revised estimates of useful lives or indicate that an impairment exists. At December 31, 2008, the Company performed its annual
goodwill impairment test. The fair value of the reporting unit was estimated based on a discounted projection of future cash flows. Current and
future levels of income are considered as well as business trends and market conditions. Due primarily to reduced short-term growth
expectations resulting from weakening economic conditions, the analysis indicated the potential for impairment. Therefore, the Company
performed the second step and determined that an impairment of goodwill existed. Accordingly, a non-cash charge of $1,617,411 was
recognized in the fourth quarter of 2008 for goodwill impairment. After recording this impairment charge, the Company has no goodwill
remaining on its consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008. There was no goodwill impairment recorded for the year ended December 31,
2007. Amortization expense for other intangible assets was $238,159 for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. Amortization
expense for other intangible assets is expected to be $238,159 in each of the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 with the remaining
balance of $59,539 being amortized in 2011.
j) Depreciation and amortization
Plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis at 2-1/2% to 5% for buildings, 2-1/2% to 20% for improvements, 10% to 33-1/3%
for machinery, equipment and fixtures and 20% to 33-1/3% for transportation equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms
of the leases inasmuch as such improvements have useful lives of at least the terms of the respective leases.
k) Employee benefits
Pension plan costs are funded currently based on actuarial estimates, with prior service costs amortized over 20 years. The Company recognizes
settlement gains and losses in its financial statements when the cost of all settlements in a year is greater than the sum of the service cost and
interest cost components of net periodic pension cost for the plan for the year.
l) Insurance
The Company self-insures for certain obligations related to employee health programs. The Company also purchases stop-loss insurance policies
to protect it from catastrophic losses. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the potential value associated with reported claims and
for losses that have occurred, but have not been reported. The Company's estimates consider historical claim experience and other factors. The
Company's liabilities are based on estimates, and, while the Company believes that the accrual for loss is adequate, the ultimate liability may be
in excess of or less than the amounts recorded. Changes in claim experience, the Company's ability to settle claims or other estimates and
judgments used by management could have a material impact on the amount and timing of expense for any period.
m) Taxes on income
Income taxes are provided for under the liability method in accordance with FAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes , whereby deferred tax
assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax
laws and rates on the date of enactment. The calculation of our tax liabilities also involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations. We recognize liabilities for uncertain income tax positions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which,
additional taxes will be required. We also report interest and penalties related to uncertain income tax positions as income taxes. Refer to Note 7.
n) Impairment of long-lived assets
In accordance with FAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets , long-lived assets, such as property and
equipment, and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of the asset is measured by comparison of its carrying
amount to future net cash flows the asset is expected to generate. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.
o) Share-based compensation
The Company awards share-based compensation as an incentive for employees to contribute to the Company’s long-term success. Historically,
the Company has issued options and stock settled stock appreciation rights. At December 31, 2008, the Company had 1,603,800 shares of
common stock authorized for awards of share-based compensation under its 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan.
On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment (“FAS No. 123(R)”) . Accordingly, the Company recognizes
share-based compensation expense for all awards granted to employees, which is based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant. Under
FAS No. 123(R), the Company’s reported stock compensation expense includes expense related to stock compensation awards granted
subsequent to January 1, 2006,
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which is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 123(R). All share-based awards previously
granted by the Company were fully vested prior to the adoption of FAS No. 123(R). Determining the appropriate fair value model and
calculating the fair value of stock compensation awards requires the input of certain highly complex and subjective assumptions, including the
expected life of the stock compensation awards and the Company’s common stock price volatility. The assumptions used in calculating the fair
value of stock compensation awards represent management’s best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the
application of judgment. As a result, if factors change and the Company deems it necessary to use different assumptions, stock compensation
expense could be materially different from what has been recorded in the current period.
For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recognized $263,146 and $539,915, respectively, of pre-tax share-based
compensation expense under FAS No. 123(R), recorded in selling and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of earnings. These
expenses were offset by $21,000 and $42,000, respectively, of deferred tax benefits for non-qualified share–based compensation. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company had no unrecognized compensation cost expected to be recognized for share-based awards based upon the
Company’s standard vesting policies, which provide for immediate vesting at the date of grant.
Stock options and stock settled stock appreciation rights. The Company grants stock options and stock settled stock appreciation rights to
employees that allow them to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock. Options are also granted to outside members of the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Company determines the fair value of stock options and stock settled stock appreciation rights at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. All options and stock appreciation rights vest immediately at the date of grant. Awards
generally expire five years after the date of grant with the exception of options granted to outside directors, which expire ten years after the date
of grant. The Company issues new shares upon the exercise of stock options and stock settled stock appreciation rights.
During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company received $29,168 and $561,586, respectively, in cash from stock option
exercises. Tax benefits of $0 and $27,000, respectively, were recognized for these exercises. Additionally, during the year ended December 31,
2007, the Company received 36,044 shares of its common stock as payment for the issuance of 48,725 shares of its common stock related to the
exercise of stock option agreements.
p) Earnings per share
Historical basic per share data is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Historical diluted per share data is reconciled by
adding to weighted average shares outstanding the dilutive impact of the exercise of outstanding stock options and stock-settled stock
appreciation rights.
q) Comprehensive income
FAS No. 130 Reporting Comprehensive Income requires disclosure of total comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income (loss) is
defined as the change in equity during a period, from transactions and other events, excluding changes resulting from investments by owners
(e.g., supplemental stock offering) and distributions to owners (e.g., dividends).
r) Operating segments
FAS No. 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information requires disclosures of certain information about operating
segments, products and services, geographic areas in which the Company operates, and their major customers. The Company has evaluated the
effect of this standard and has determined that currently it operates in one segment, as defined in this statement.
s) Risks and concentrations
When assessing credit risk the Company considers whether the credit risk exists at both the individual and group level. Consideration is given to
the activity, region and economic characteristics when assessing if there exists a group concentration risk. At December 31, 2008 the Company
has one individual customer with accounts receivable balances greater than 10% of the total accounts receivable. This customer owed
$2,357,000 or approximately 13.1% of the total accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2008 the accounts
receivable balances for the Company’s five largest customers totaled $5,857,000 or approximately 32.5% of the total accounts receivable
balance. At December 31, 2007 the Company had no individual customer with accounts receivable balances greater than 10% of the total
accounts receivable. At December 31, 2007 the accounts receivable balances for the Company’s five largest customers totaled $4,739,000 or
approximately 24.7% of the total accounts receivable balance. The Company’s largest customer for the year ended December 31, 2008 had net
sales of approximately $9,713,000 or approximately 7.8% of total net sales for the Company. The Company’s five largest customers for the year
ended December 31, 2008 had net sales of approximately $33,806,000 or approximately 27.3% of total net sales for the Company. The
Company’s largest customer for the year ended December 31, 2007 had net sales of approximately $7,625,000 or approximately 6.3% of total
net sales for the Company. The Company’s five largest customers for the year ended December 31, 2007 had net sales of approximately
$24,496,000 or approximately 20.3% of total net sales for the Company.
In 2008 and 2007, approximately 63% and 62%, respectively, of the Company’s products were obtained from suppliers located in Central
America. Any inability by the Company to continue to obtain its products from Central
22

Table of Contents
America could significantly disrupt the Company’s business. Because the Company manufactures and sources products in Central America, the
Company is affected by economic conditions in those countries, including increased duties, possible employee turnover, labor unrest and lack of
developed infrastructure.
t) Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable approximated fair value as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, because of the relatively short maturities of these instruments. The carrying amount of long-term debt, including current maturities,
approximated fair value as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, based upon terms and conditions currently available to the Company in comparison
to terms and conditions of the existing long-term debt.
u) Derivative financial instruments
The Company follows FAS No. 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“FAS No. 133”) as amended by FAS
No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities —an Amendment to FAS Statement No. 133 (“FAS
No. 138”) . The Company has only limited involvement with derivative financial instruments. The Company has one interest rate swap
agreement to hedge against the potential impact on earnings from increases in market interest rates of a variable rate term loan. Under the
interest rate swap agreement, the Company receives or makes payments on a monthly basis, based on the differential between a specified interest
rate and one month LIBOR. A term loan of $650,604 is designated as a hedged item for the interest rate swap at December 31, 2008. This
interest rate swap is accounted for as a cash flow hedge in accordance with FAS No. 133 and FAS No. 138. As of the report date, the swap met
the effectiveness test, and as such no gains or losses were included in net earnings during the year related to hedge ineffectiveness and there was
no income adjustment related to any portion excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. Gains of $25,000 and $6,000 were included in
other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The fair market values of the interest rate swap of
$5,000 and $30,000 are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The original term of the contract is ten years.
v) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates.
w) Recent accounting pronouncements
In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“FAS No. 157”). FAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements required under other accounting pronouncements,
but does not change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. We have adopted FASB Staff Position 157-2,
“Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157” (“FSP No. 157-2”), issued February 2008, and as a result we applied the provisions of FAS
No. 157 that are applicable as of January 1, 2008, which had no material effect on our consolidated financial statements. FSP No. 157-2 delays
the effective date of SFAS 157 for certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities until January 1, 2009.
In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ FAS No. 159”) which
permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be
measured at fair value. FAS No. 159 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The adoption of FAS No. 159 has not had a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements.
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (“FAS No. 141(R)”), Business Combinations , which is a revision of FAS
No. 141, Business Combinations . The primary requirements of FAS No. 141(R) are as follows: (I.) Upon initially obtaining control, the
acquiring entity in a business combination must recognize 100% of the fair values of the acquired assets, including goodwill, and assumed
liabilities, with only limited exceptions even if the acquirer has not acquired 100% of its target. As a consequence, the current step acquisition
model will be eliminated. (II.) Contingent consideration arrangements will be fair valued at the acquisition date and included on that basis in the
purchase price consideration. The concept of recognizing contingent consideration at a later date when the amount of that consideration is
determinable beyond a reasonable doubt, will no longer be applicable. (III.) All transaction costs will be expensed as incurred. FAS No. 141(R)
is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. Adoption is prospective and early adoption is
not permitted. The adoption of FAS No. 141(R) has not had a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. It will impact any future
business combinations effective after January 1, 2009.
A variety of proposed or otherwise potential accounting standards are currently under study by standard-setting organizations and various
regulatory agencies. Because of the tentative and preliminary nature of these proposed standards, management has not determined whether
implementation of such proposed standards would be material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 2—Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable:
The activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable was as follows:
Balance at the beginning of year

2008

2007

$ 490,000

$ 500,000

190,000

88,000

(112,076)

(108,413)

Provision for bad debts
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Balance at the end of year

7,076
$ 575,000

10,413
$ 490,000

NOTE 3—Reserve for Sales Returns and Allowances:
The activity in the reserve for sales returns and allowances was as follows:
2008

Balance at the beginning of year

$

Provision for returns and allowances

2007

373,087

$

343,753

3,760,961

Actual returns and allowances paid to customers
Balance at the end of year

$

4,231,837

(3,699,125)
434,923

$

(4,202,503)
373,087

NOTE 4—Inventories:
December 31,

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials

2008

2007

$34,255,052
118,030
9,037,064
$43,410,146

$35,613,513
171,842
10,678,307
$46,463,662

NOTE 5—Property, Plant and Equipment:
December 31,
2008

Land
Buildings, improvements and leaseholds
Machinery, equipment and fixtures

$ 1,377,774
8,593,747
45,890,163
55,861,684
43,274,230
$12,587,454

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization charges were approximately $2,998,000 and $3,120,000 in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
24

2007

$

727,416
7,938,553
45,018,711
53,684,680
40,364,462
$13,320,218
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NOTE 6 – Long-Term Debt:
December 31,

Note payable to Wachovia, pursuant to revolving credit agreement, maturing June 30, 2010
6.75% term loan payable to Wachovia, with monthly payments of principal and interest, maturing
April 1, 2009
Less payments due within one year included in current liabilities
Long-term debt less current maturities

December 31,

2008

2007

$3,379,000

$1,795,000

650,604
4,029,604

2,201,806
3,996,806

650,604

1,551,202

$3,379,000

$2,445,604

On March 26, 1999, the Company entered into a 3-year credit agreement with Wachovia Bank that made available to the Company up to
$15,000,000 on a revolving credit basis. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 0.60% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based
borrowings (4.4% at December 31, 2008). The Company pays an annual commitment fee of 0.15% on the average unused portion of the
commitment. The available balance under the credit agreement is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2008,
approximately $85,000 was outstanding under letters of credit. On March 27, 2001, on April 27, 2004, and again on June 25, 2007, the Company
entered into agreements with Wachovia Bank to extend the maturity of the revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit agreement matures
on June 30, 2010. At the option of the Company, any outstanding balance on the agreement at that date will convert to a one-year term loan. The
remaining terms of the original revolving credit agreement remain unchanged. The Company also entered into a $12,000,000 10-year term loan
on March 26, 1999 with the same bank. The term loan is an amortizing loan, with monthly payments of principal and interest, maturing on
April 1, 2009. The term loan carries a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.80% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based
borrowings. Concurrent with the execution of the term loan agreement, the Company entered into an interest rate swap with the bank under
which the Company receives a variable rate of interest on a notional amount equal to the outstanding balance of the term loan from the bank and
the Company pays a fixed rate of 6.75% on a notional amount equal to the outstanding balance of the term loan to the bank.
The credit agreement and the term loan with Wachovia contain restrictive provisions concerning liabilities to tangible net worth ratio (.75:1),
other borrowings, capital expenditures, working capital ratio (2.5:1), and fixed charges coverage ratio (2.5:1). The Company is in full
compliance with all terms, conditions and covenants of the various credit agreements.
Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt obligations are approximately $651,000 in 2009 and $3,379,000 in 2011.
25

Table of Contents
NOTE 7 – Taxes on Income:
Aggregate income tax provisions consist of the following:
Current:
Federal
State and local
Deferred

2008

2007

$2,166,000
197,000
2,363,000
(513,000)

$1,600,000
181,000
1,781,000
29,000

$1,850,000

$1,810,000

The significant components of the deferred income tax asset (liability) are as follows:
2008

Deferred income tax assets:
Pension accruals
Operating reserves and other accruals
Tax carrying value in excess of book basis of goodwill
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Book carrying value in excess of book basis of property
Deferred expenses

2007

$ 3,083,000
1,069,000
1,053,000

$

(1,695,000)
(900,000)

Net deferred income tax asset (liability)

236,000
1,009,000
1,137,000
(1,934,000)
(1,198,000)

$ 2,610,000

$ (750,000)

The difference between the total statutory Federal income tax rate and the actual effective income tax rate is accounted for as follows:
Statutory Federal income tax rate
State and local income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit
Effect of change in unrecognized tax benefit
Non-deductible portion of goodwill impairment
Non-deductible share-based employee compensation expense
Other items
Effective income tax rate

2008

2007

34.0%
3.1
1.5
6.1
1.7
(1.7)
44.7%

34.0%
2.2
(5.3)
—
2.6
(0.6)
32.9%

We adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48, and FASB Staff Position No. FIN 48-1, on January 1, 2007. Only tax positions that met the morelikely-than-not recognition threshold at the adoption date were recognized or continued to be recognized. As a result of the implementation of
FIN No. 48, we recognized a $133,000 increase to the liability for uncertain tax positions, which was accounted for as an adjustment to the
beginning balance of retained earnings.
As of the date of adoption, including the increase in the liability noted above, we had approximately $728,000 of unrecognized tax benefits, all
of which, if recognized, would favorably affect the annual effective income tax rate. As of December 31, 2008, we have $665,000 of
unrecognized tax benefits, all of which, if recognized, would favorably affect the annual effective income tax rate. None of this liability is
expected to be paid in the next twelve months. Accordingly, the balance of $665,000 is included in other long-term liabilities.
The Internal Revenue Service completed an audit of our 2004 and 2005 federal income tax returns during the year ended December 31, 2007. As
a result, we paid approximately $137,000 of tax, $28,000 of interest and $0 in penalties during the year ended December 31, 2007. The tax
payment was primarily related to timing difference benefits being deferred.
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Changes in the Company’s gross liability for unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest and penalties, were as follows:
Balance at January 1,
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitations
Reductions due to settlements with tax authorities
Balance at December 31,

2008

2007

$483,000
77,000
24,000
(6,000)
(47,000)
—
$531,000

$ 599,000
88,000
99,000
(80,000)
(47,000)
(176,000)
$ 483,000

We recognize interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes. After adopting FIN 48 at
January 1, 2007, we had $129,000 accrued for interest and penalties, net of tax benefit. During 2007, we recorded $50,000 for interest and
penalties, net of tax benefit. We reduced the liability by $59,000 of interest and penalties due to lapse of statute of limitations and audit
settlements. At December 31, 2007, we had $120,000 accrued for interest and penalties, net of tax benefit. During 2008, we recorded $38,000 for
interest and penalties, net of tax benefits. We reduced the liability by $25,000 of interest and penalties due to lapse of statute of limitations. At
December 31, 2008, we had $134,000 accrued for interest and penalties, net of tax benefit.
We anticipate that it is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by approximately $6,000 within the
next 12 months due to the closure of tax years by expiration of the statute of limitations and audit settlements related to various state tax filing
positions. The earliest tax year open to examination by a major taxing jurisdiction is 2001.
NOTE 8 – Benefit Plans:
Defined Benefit Plans
The Company is the sponsor of two noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plans, providing for normal retirement at age 65, covering
all eligible employees (as defined). Periodic benefit payments on retirement are determined based on a fixed amount applied to service or
determined as a percentage of earnings prior to retirement. The Company is also the sponsor of an unfunded supplemental executive retirement
plan (SERP) in which several of its employees are participants. Pension plan assets for retirement benefits consist primarily of fixed income
securities and common stock equities.
FAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans: an amendment of FAS Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R ) (“FAS No. 158”) requires the Company to recognize the funded status of its defined benefit postretirement plan in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets.
At December 31, 2008, the Company’s projected benefit obligation under its pension plans exceeded the fair value of the plans’ assets by
$7,056,000 and thus the plans are underfunded.
Prior to December 31, 2008, plan liabilities and the market-related value of our corporate plan assets were determined based on a November 1st
measurement date and our factory plan was determined based upon a December 31st measurement date. During 2008, the measurement date of
our corporate plan was changed to December 31st in accordance with the requirements of FAS No. 158. It is our policy to make contributions to
the various plans in accordance with statutory funding requirements and any additional funding that may be deemed appropriate.
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The following tables present the changes in the benefit obligations and the various plan assets, the funded status of the plans, and the amounts
recognized in the Company's consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007:
December 31,

Changes in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss
Settlement
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year

2008

2007

$ 16,679,000
702,000
1,088,000
246,000
—
(1,005,000)
17,710,000

$16,848,000
655,000
998,000
4,000
188,000
(2,014,000)
16,679,000

17,693,000
(6,034,000)
—
(1,005,000)
10,654,000

17,011,000
2,196,000
500,000
(2,014,000)
17,693,000

Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Funded status at end of year
Amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheet
Other assets
Long-term pension liability
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of:
Net actuarial loss
Prior service cost

$ (7,056,000)

$ 1,014,000

$

—
(7,056,000)
$ (7,056,000)

$ 1,937,000
(923,000)
$ 1,014,000

$ 8,381,000
115,000
$ 8,496,000

$
$

570,000
140,000
710,000

Information for pension plans with projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets
December 31,
2008

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

$ 17,710,000
(10,654,000)
$ 7,056,000

2007

$
$

923,000
—
923,000

Components of net periodic benefit cost
2008

Net periodic benefits cost
Service cost—benefits earned during the period
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized actuarial loss (gain)
Settlement gain
Net periodic pension cost after settlements

$

611,000
976,000
(1,403,000)
32,000
11,000
—
$
227,000
28

2007

$

655,000
998,000
(1,363,000)
37,000
(22,000)
(36,000)
$ 269,000
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The pension settlement gain included in the table above relates to lump sum payments made to various employees upon their retirement or
termination in each year.
The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $643,000 and $30,000, respectively.
The table below presents various assumptions used in determining the benefit obligation for each year and reflects the percentages for the
various plans.
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31,

2007
2008

Discount Rate
Corp.
Plants

Long Term Rate
of Return
Corp.
Plants

Salary Scale
Corp.
Plants

6.00%
6.00%

8.00%
8.00%

4.50%
4.50%

6.00%
6.13%

8.00%
8.00%

N/A
N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for years ending December 31,

2007
2008

Discount Rate
Corp.
Plants

Long Term Rate
of Return
Corp.
Plants

Salary Scale
Corp.
Plants

6.00%
6.00%

8.00%
8.00%

4.50%
4.50%

6.00%
6.00%

8.00%
8.00%

N/A
N/A

The methodology used to determine the expected rate of return on the pension plan assets was based on review of actual returns in the past and
consideration of projected returns based upon our projected asset allocation. Our strategy with respect to our investments in pension plan assets
is to be invested with a long-term outlook. Therefore, the risk and return balance of our asset portfolio should reflect a long-term horizon. Our
pension plan asset allocation at December 31, 2008, 2007 and target allocation for 2009 are as follows:
Percentage of Plan
Assets at
December 31,
Investment description

2008

Equity securities
Fixed income
Other
Total

2007

68%
28%
4%
100%

The Company plans to contribute $1,000,000 to our defined benefit pension plans in 2009.
The following table includes projected benefit payments for the years indicated:
Year

Projected Benefit Payments

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018

653,000
678,000
717,000
777,000
813,000
5,129,000
29

71%
29%
—
100%

Target
Allocation
2009

70%
30%
—
100%
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Defined Contribution Plan
The Company provides a defined contribution plan covering qualified employees. The plan includes a provision that allows employees to make
pre-tax contributions under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan provides for the Company to make a guaranteed match equal
to 25% of each employee’s eligible contributions. The plan also provides the Company with the option of making an additional discretionary
contribution to the plan each year. The Company contributions for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were approximately $95,000
and $130,000, respectively.
NOTE 9 – Quarterly Results for 2007 and 2008 (Unaudited):
Quarter Ended
June 30,
September 30,
2007
2007

March 31,
2007

December 31,
2007

Net sales

$28,713,303

$29,938,498

$30,391,919

$31,414,171

Gross Profit

$ 9,539,629

$ 9,801,584

$ 9,941,098

$10,337,988

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes on income

$

370,488

$ 1,268,395

$ 1,692,277

$ 2,174,671

Earnings from continuing operations

$

240,488

$

$ 1,352,277

$ 1,294,671

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits

$ (115,893)

$ (148,352)

$ (134,905)

$ (747,353)

Net earnings

$

124,595

$

660,043

$ 1,217,372

$

547,318

Per Share Data:
Basic
Earnings from continuing operations

$

0.04

$

0.12

$

0.20

$

0.20

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits

$

(0.02)

$

(0.02)

$

(0.02)

$

(0.12)

Net earnings

$

0.02

$

0.10

$

0.18

$

0.08

$
$
$

0.04
(0.02)
0.02

$
$
$

0.12
(0.02)
0.10

$
$
$

0.20
(0.02)
0.18

$
$
$

0.19
(0.11)
0.08

Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings

808,395

Average Outstanding Shares (Basic)

6,628,158

6,642,162

6,656,214

6,666,653

Average Outstanding Shares (Diluted)

6,668,376

6,678,825

6,676,054

6,679,465
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Quarter Ended
June 30,
September 30,
2008
2008

March 31,
2008

December 31,
2008

Net sales

$33,282,630

$31,699,285

$30,613,175

$28,150,111

Gross Profit

$10,908,577

$10,657,901

$10,064,221

$ 8,711,920

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before taxes on income

$ 1,504,808

$ 1,970,804

$ 1,524,786

$ (860,065)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

$

$ 1,210,804

$

$ (820,065)

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits

$ (113,438)

$

$

Net earnings (loss)

$

$ 1,178,273

$

976,145

Per Share Data:
Basic
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings (loss)

$
$
$

0.14
(0.02)
0.12

$
$
$

0.18
—
0.18

$
$
$

0.15
—
0.15

$
$
$

(0.13)
—
(0.13)

$
$
$

0.14
(0.02)
0.12
6,670,650
6,674,072

$
$
$

0.18
—
0.18
6,611,262
6,612,110

$
$
$

0.15
—
0.15
6,459,751
6,472,142

$
$
$

(0.13)
—
(0.13)
6,149,358
6,149,358

Diluted
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings (loss)
Average Outstanding Shares (Basic)
Average Outstanding Shares (Diluted)

914,808

801,370

(32,531)

984,786
(8,641)

$

(1,950)

$ (822,015)

The independent registered public accounting firm made reviews of the 2007 and 2008 quarterly financial information in accordance with
standards established by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Such reviews were substantially less in scope than
examinations in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the
expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole, and accordingly, no such opinions were expressed.
NOTE 10 – Rentals:
Aggregate rent expense, including month-to-month rentals, approximated $385,000 and $491,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively. Long-term lease commitments totaling $362,000 are as follows: 2009 – $185,000; 2010—$162,000; 2011— $14,000; and
2012—$1,000.
NOTE 11 – Contingencies:
The Company is involved in various legal actions and claims arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of these matters will not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.
During 2005, the Company entered into severance protection agreements with senior management. The terms of these agreements require the
Company to potentially make certain payments to members of senior management in the event of a change in control of the Company.
During 2006, the Company entered into indemnification agreements with its directors and officers for certain events or occurrences that happen
by reason of the fact that the officer or director is, was or has agreed to serve as an officer or director of the Company. The maximum potential
amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited; however, the Company
has a Director and Officer insurance policy that is considered adequate to cover its exposure. No claims have ever been filed under these
agreements.
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NOTE 12 – Share-Based Compensation:
In 1993, the Company adopted an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “1993 Plan”) under which options on 1,500,000 shares were reserved for
grant. The 1993 Plan provided for the issuance of incentive stock options. This plan expired in February of 2003. In May, 2003, the stockholders
of the Company approved the 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan (the “2003 Plan”), authorizing the granting of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock-settled stock appreciation rights (“SARS”), restricted stock, performance stock and other share-based
compensation. A total of 2,500,000 shares of common stock (subject to adjustment for expirations and cancellations of options outstanding from
the 1993 Plan subsequent to its termination) have been reserved for issuance under the 2003 Plan. All awards under both plans have been or will
be granted at prices at least equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant. Awards (all of which are exercisable at each
respective year end) granted to date under both plans are exercisable in part or in full within five years of grant date with the exception of annual
grants to outside directors which are exercisable in part or in full within ten years of grant date. Proceeds from the exercise of awards are
credited to common stock to the extent of par value, and the balance is credited to additional paid-in capital. A summary of option transactions
during the two years ended December 31, 2008 follows:
Weighted Average
No. of
Shares

Outstanding December 31, 2006
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed
Cancelled
Outstanding December 31, 2007
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed
Cancelled
Outstanding December 31, 2008

781,850
161,350
(101,850)
(1,250)
(41,125)
798,975
210,150
(3,200)
(162,650)
(76,175)
767,100

Exercise Price

$

13.01
12.58
10.27
9.75
13.20
13.26
9.13
9.12
12.37
13.12
12.35

$

At December 31, 2008, options outstanding, all of which were fully vested and exercisable, had no intrinsic value.
Options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, had intrinsic values of $3,307 and $289,936, respectively.
The weighted average fair value of options granted for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, was $1.05 and $2.26, respectively.
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2008:
Weighted Average Remaining
Range of
Exercise Price

Shares

$8.125-$10.45
$11.02-$13.78
$14.00-$17.13
$8.125-$17.13

207,100
306,975
253,025
767,100

Weighted Average

Contractual Life (Years)

4.38
3.21
0.72
2.72
32

Exercise Price

$
$
$
$

9.13
12.34
15.01
12.35
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A summary of stock-settled stock appreciation rights transactions during the two years ended December 31, 2008 follows:
Weighted Average
No. of
Shares

Outstanding December 31, 2006
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed
Cancelled
Outstanding December 31, 2007
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed
Cancelled
Outstanding December 31, 2008

157,000
75,000
—
—
—
232,000
41,400
—
—
—
273,400

Exercise Price

$

13.16
12.74
—
—
—
13.02
9.16
—
—
—
12.44

$

At December 31, 2008 SARS outstanding, all of which were fully vested and exercisable, had no aggregate intrinsic value.
There were no SARS exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.
The weighted average fair value of SARS granted for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $1.03 and $2.34, respectively.
The following table summarizes information about stock appreciation rights outstanding as of December 31, 2008:
Weighted Average Remaining
Range of
Exercise Price

SARS

$8.125-$10.45
$11.02-$13.78
$14.00-$17.13
$8.125-$17.13

41,400
150,000
82,000
273,400

Weighted Average

Contractual Life (Years)

4.08
2.58
1.08
2.36

Exercise Price

$
$
$
$

9.16
11.97
14.95
12.44

At December 31, options and SARS available to issue were 1,603,800 for 2008 and 1,616,525 for 2007. Options and SARS have never been
repriced by the Company in any year.
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The following table summarizes significant assumptions utilized to determine the fair value of share-based compensation awards:
SARS

Options

Exercise price
2008
2007

$ 9.16
$ 12.74

$ 9.04-$9.22
$ 12.35-$12.74

Market price
2008
2007

$ 9.16
$ 12.74

$ 9.04-$9.22
$ 12.35-$12.74

Risk free interest rate (1)
2008
2007

2.8%
4.7%

Expected award life (2)

5 years

Expected volatility (3)
2008
2007
Expected dividend yield (4)
2008
2007
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

2.8%-3.8%
4.6%-4.8%
5-10 years

23.5%
24.6%

23.5%-26.6%
23.0%-26.0%

5.9%
4.2%

5.9%-6.0%
4.2%-4.4%

The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield of a U.S. treasury bond with a similar maturity as the expected life of the awards.
The expected life in years for awards granted was based on the historical exercise patterns experienced by the Company when the award is
made.
The determination of expected stock price volatility for awards granted in each of the two years ended December 31, was based on
historical Superior common stock prices over a period commensurate with the expected life.
The dividend yield assumption is based on the history and expectation of the Company’s dividend payouts.
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NOTE 13 – Earnings Per Share:
The following table represents a reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic
Common stock equivalents
Total weighted average shares outstanding—diluted
Per Share Data:
Basic
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings
Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefits
Net earnings

2008

2007

$2,290,333
(156,560)
$2,133,773
6,472,755
4,165
6,476,920

$ 3,695,831
(1,146,503)
$ 2,549,328
6,648,297
27,383
6,675,680

$

0.35
(0.02)
0.33

$

0.35
(0.02)
0.33

$

$
$
$

0.56
(0.18)
0.38

$

0.55
(0.17)
0.38

$

Awards to purchase an average of 913,106 shares of common stock with a weighted average exercise price of $13.06 per share were outstanding
during 2008, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the awards’ exercise prices were greater than the average market
price of the common shares. Awards to purchase an average of 645,625 shares of common stock with a weighted average exercise price of
$14.11 per share were outstanding during 2007 but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the awards’ exercise prices
were greater than the average market price of the common shares.
NOTE 14 – Accrued Expenses:
December 31,

Salaries, wages, commissions and vacation pay
Other accrued expenses

2008

2007

$1,468,177
1,050,779
$2,518,956

$1,504,662
1,045,018
$2,549,680

NOTE 15 – Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

$1,879,256
$ 328,805

$1,012,172
$ 338,721

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company received a note receivable for $324,606 as partial payment related to the sale of the
Sope Creek business.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company repurchased $4,805,453 of raw materials inventory from its primary supplier in Central
America. The Company reduced the accounts receivable balance from the supplier by the same amount as payment for the inventory. During the
year ended December 31, 2007, the Company received 36,044 shares of its common stock as payment for the issuance of 48,725 shares of its
common stock related to the exercise of stock option agreements.
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NOTE 16 – Stock Repurchase Plan:
In May 2006, the Board of Directors reset the common stock repurchase program authorization so that the Company could make future
repurchases of up to 750,000 of its common shares. Through July 31, 2008, the Company repurchased 625,881 shares of its common stock under
such repurchase program. On August 1, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors reset the common stock repurchase program authorization to
allow for the repurchase of 1,000,000 additional shares of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock. The Company reacquired and
retired 617,096 shares and 0 shares of its common stock in the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, with approximate costs of
$5,712,000, and $0, respectively. At December 31, 2008, the Company had 588,615 shares remaining on its common stock repurchase
authorization. Shares purchased under the share repurchase program are constructively retired and returned to unissued status. The Company
considers several factors in determining when to make share repurchases, including among other things, the cost of equity, the after-tax cost of
borrowing, the debt to total capitalization targets and the expected future cash needs. There is no expiration date or other restriction governing
the period over which the Company can make its share repurchases under the program.
NOTE 17 – Discontinued Operations:
During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company made a decision to divest Sope Creek. As a result, the related assets of Sope Creek have been
classified as held for sale at December 31, 2007 and have been written down to their estimated fair value less selling costs. The write down to
fair value resulted in a charge to loss from discontinued operations of approximately $596,000, net of tax benefit in the fourth quarter of 2007.
Additionally, the results of operations of Sope Creek have been reported as a loss from discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of
earnings for each of the two years ended December 31, 2008. The table below summarizes financial results for the Sope Creek business:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007

Net sales
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes
Loss from discontinued operations

$281,171
$246,560
$156,560

$3,455,836
$1,826,503
$1,146,503

Assets held for sale at December 31, 2007 includes $442,889 of inventory, $70,890 of prepaid expenses and other current assets, and $44,697 of
property, plant and equipment.
The Company completed the sale of its Sope Creek business on February 4, 2008. The Company received $225,000 in cash at closing and a
short-term note receivable for $324,606. These proceeds, net of expenses related to the transaction, approximated the carrying value of the assets
sold, which were classified as assets held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet.
NOTE 18 – Related Party Transactions:
During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company expensed approximately $70,000 to Alpert Business Consulting, LLC, a private
corporation owned by the son-in-law of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, for consulting services.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Board of Directors and Shareholders
Superior Uniform Group, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. (a Florida corporation) and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years
in the period ended December 31, 2008. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our
audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Superior
Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Tampa, Florida
February 27, 2009
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Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer), Michael Benstock, and the Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer),
Andrew D. Demott, Jr., evaluated the effectiveness of Superior’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report (the “Evaluation Date”), and concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective
to ensure that information the Company is required to disclose in its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms,
and to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2008, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
•

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the Company;

•

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

•

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Management conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control –
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation under the
Internal Control – Integrated Framework, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2008.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
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Item 9B.

Other Information

None.
PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Company’s directors and executive officers as of December 31, 2008 are listed below:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Gerald M. Benstock
Michael Benstock
Alan D. Schwartz
Manuel Gaetan, Ph.D. PE
Robin Hensley
Sidney Kirschner
Paul V. Mellini

Chairman of the Board
and Executive Committee
Chief Executive Officer
President
President, CEO,
MGR Enterprises, LLC
President, Raising the Bar
Retired, President and CEO,
Northside Hospital, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer and
President, Nature Coast Bank

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Gerald M. Benstock
Michael Benstock
Alan D. Schwartz
Peter Benstock
Andrew D. Demott, Jr.
Richard T. Dawson

Chairman of the Board
and Executive Committee
Chief Executive Officer
President
Executive Vice President
Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

The Company has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics applicable to the Company's Directors, officers (including the Company's
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and controller) and employees, known as the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“the
Code”). The Code is available on the Company's website. In the event that we amend or waive any of the provisions of the Code applicable to
our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or controller that relates to any element of the code of ethics definition enumerated in
Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K, we intend to disclose the same on the Company's website at www.superioruniformgroup.com .
The remaining information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in
connection with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection
with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item relating to beneficial ownership of securities is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table provides information about our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options, warrants, rights and
restricted stock under all our existing equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2008, including the 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan and
the 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan:
Number of securities

Plan category

to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

warrants and rights
(a)

warrants and rights
(b)

Equity compensation Plans approved by Security holders
Equity compensation Plans not approved by Security holders
Total
Item 13.

1,040,500
—
1,040,500

$
$

Number of securities
remaining available
for future
issuance under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
(c)

12.38
—
12.38

1,603,800
—
1,603,800

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection
with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 14.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection
with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Page

(a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements
The following financial statements of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. are included in Part II, Item 8:
Consolidated statements of earnings - years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated balance sheets - December 31, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity - years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated statements of cash flows - years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
Notes to consolidated financial statements
Independent Auditors’ Report
(a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or not required, or because the required information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
(a) 3. Exhibits
See Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
/s/ Michael Benstock
By: Michael Benstock
(Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive
Officer )
DATE: February 27, 2009
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
/s/ Michael Benstock
Michael Benstock, February 27, 2009
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Andrew D. Demott, Jr.
Andrew D. Demott, Jr., February 27, 2009
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting Officer and Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Gerald M. Benstock
Gerald M. Benstock, February 27, 2009
(Chairman)

/s/ Alan D. Schwartz
Alan D. Schwartz, February 27, 2009
(Director)

/s/ Paul Mellini
Paul Mellini, February 27, 2009
(Director)

/s/ Robin Hensley
Robin Hensley, February 27, 2009
(Director)

/s/ Manuel Gaetan
Manuel Gaetan, February 27, 2009
(Director)

/s/ Sidney Kirschner
Sidney Kirschner, February 27, 2009
(Director)
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SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Interim Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/98680627) and incorporated herein by
reference.

3.2

Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended, filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Form 8-A filed on March 20, 2008 (File/Film No.: 00105869/08700667) and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1

Credit Agreement dated March 26, 1999, between the Registrant and First Union, filed with the Commission as Exhibit 4.1
to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/99609209) and
incorporated herein by reference.

4.2

Credit Agreement dated October 16, 2000, between the Registrant and First Union, filed with the Commission as Exhibit
4.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/752644) and
incorporated herein by reference.

4.3

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement and Other Loan Documents between Registrant and First Union filed with the
Commission as Exhibit 4.1 and Renewal of Revolving Credit Note filed with the Commission as Exhibit 4.2 to the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/1624119), both of which are
incorporated herein by reference.

4.4

Third Amendment to Loan Agreement and Other Loan Documents between Registrant and Wachovia and Renewal of
Revolving Credit Note filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant’s 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File/Film No.: 00105869/05684618) and incorporated herein by reference.

4.5

Renewal Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note between Registrant and Wachovia filed as Exhibit 4.5 to the
Registrant’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File/Film No.: 001-05869/08653598) and incorporated herein by
reference.

10.1*

Form of Director/Officer Indemnification Agreement filed as Exhibit 10 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2006 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/06821111), and incorporated herein by reference.

10.2* (1)

Description of bonus plan for executive officers of the Registrant.

10.3*

1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s August 18, 1993 Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No: 33-67604) and incorporated herein by reference.

10.4 (1)

1994 Superior Surgical Mfg. Co., Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan as amended and restated on November 7, 2008.

10.5*

2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 4 to the Registrant’s June 6, 2003 Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File/Film No.: 333-105906/03735570) and incorporated herein by reference.

10.6* (1)

Form of [Incentive] Stock Option Award.

10.7* (1)

Form of Stock Appreciation Right Award.

10.8*

Severance Protection Agreement with Michael Benstock, dated November 23, 2005, filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 28, 2005 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/051228333) and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.9*

Severance Protection Agreement with Alan Schwartz, dated November 23, 3005, filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 28, 2005 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/051228333) and incorporated herein
by reference.

10.10*

Severance Protection Agreement with Peter Benstock, dated November 23, 2005, filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 28, 2005 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/051228333) and incorporated herein
by reference.

10.11*

Severance Protection Agreement with Andrew D. Demott, Jr., dated November 23, 2005, filed as Exhibit 99.4 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 28, 2005 (File/Film No.: 001-05869/051228333) and
incorporated herein by reference.

14.1

Code of Business Ethics, as amended on November 12, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s 2007 Annual Report
on Form 10-K (File/Film No.: 001-05869/08653598) and incorporated herein by reference.

21.1 (1)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1 (1)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Grant Thornton LLP.

31.1 (1)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

31.2 (1)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

32.1 (1)

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

32.2 (1)

Written Statement of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

*
(1)

Management contracts and compensatory plans and arrangements.
Filed herewith.
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Exhibit 10.2
Summary Description of Executive Incentive Compensation Plan
Our annual executive incentive bonuses are intended to compensate officers for achieving our annual financial goals at corporate levels
(and for achieving measurable individual annual performance objectives). Our annual incentive bonus plan provides for a cash bonus, dependent
upon the level of achievement of the stated corporate goals (and personal performance goals), calculated as a percentage of the officer's base
salary. The annual incentive bonus ties incentive compensation to net earnings per share as reported in the Company’s audited financial
statements adjusted for certain items (“BEPS”). Under this plan, the Compensation Committee establishes a minimum BEPS target that must be
reached before any bonuses are earned. The target BEPS is based upon the annually established financial growth plan and goal. The
Compensation Committee also establishes for each participant in the Plan, including executive officers, individual incentive amounts (“TIA”)
that may be earned, in whole or in part, depending upon whether the minimum BEPS target is reached and by how much it is exceeded during
the fiscal year. At the minimum target BEPS level, the plan participants will earn a bonus equal to 20% of the TIA. For 2009, the target incentive
awards (as a percentage of base salary) will be as follows: Chief Executive Officer, 40%; Chief Financial Officer, 40%; Chairman, 40%;
President, 40% and Executive Vice President, 40%. The payout continues to increase as BEPS increases and there is no maximum payout for the
target bonus. The BEPS level for 100% payout of the TIA is equal to $0.75 per share. The Company’s BEPS as adjusted for bonus purposes was
$0.63 for the year ended December 31, 2008 and $0.56 for the year ended December 31, 2007. Any incentive compensation earned under this
plan is paid during February of the following year.

Exhibit 10.4
SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN
Effective November 1, 1994
Amended and Restated November 7, 2008

SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. a Florida corporation, formerly known as Superior Surgical Mfg. Co., Inc. (the "Employer") established the
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan (the "Supplemental Plan" or simply "Plan") as a nonqualified, unfunded plan of
deferred compensation, to supplement the benefits provided under the Superior Uniform Group, Inc. Employees' Pension Plan (the "Basic
Plan"). The Plan is designed to provide for the payment of benefits to certain employees who are participants in the Basic Plan, without regard to
limitations on the Basic Plan, which are prescribed by sections 415 and 401(a)(17) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ("Code").
The Plan consists of two separate and distinct component plans:
(a)

an unfunded excess benefit plan, as that term is defined in sections 3(36) and 4(b)(5) of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974 ("ERISA") (the "Excess Plan"); and

(b)

an unfunded supplemental executive retirement plan which is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing additional deferred
compensation for a select group of management and highly compensated employees, as described in sections 201(2), 301(a)(3) and
401(a)(1) of ERISA (the "Executive Retirement Plan").

The Plan has been amended and restated on November 7, 2008, but effective as of January 1, 2005 in order to make certain changes required to
comply with the requirements imposed on deferred compensation plans by Section 409A of the Code for years beginning on and after January 1,
2005.
ARTICLE 1: PURPOSE OF THE PLAN
The Employer intends and desires by the adoption of this Plan to recognize the value to the Employer of past and present services of certain
employees covered by the Basic Plan and to encourage their continued service with the Employer by making more adequate provision for their
future retirement security.
ARTICLE 2: COORDINATION WITH THE BASIC PLAN
Benefits under this Plan are coordinated with benefits under the Basic Plan. For purposes of this Plan, Basic Plan means the Superior Uniform
Group, Inc. Employees' Pension Plan, any amendments thereto, and any amendments which may be in effect as of the date any determination is
made of benefits payable under this Plan. All terms used in this Plan shall have the meanings assigned to them under the provisions of the Basic
Plan, unless otherwise qualified by the context.
ARTICLE 3: ADMINISTRATION
This Plan shall be administered by the Committee under the Basic Plan, which shall administer it in a manner consistent with the administration
of the Basic Plan, except that this Plan shall be administered as an unfunded plan which is not intended to meet the qualification requirements of
section 401 of the Code. The Committee shall have full power and authority to interpret, construe and administer this Plan, and the Committee’s
interpretations and construction hereof, and actions hereunder, including determinations as to the timing, form, amount or recipient of any
payments to be made hereunder, shall be binding and conclusive upon all persons for all purposes. No member of the Committee shall be liable
to any person for any action taken or omitted in connection with the interpretation or administration of this Plan, unless attributable to his own
willful misconduct or lack of good faith. A Committee member shall not participate in any action or determination regarding his own benefits
hereunder.
ARTICLE 4: ELIGIBILITY
The following Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan:
(a)

Employees who are participating in the Basic Plan and whose pension or pension-related benefits under the Basic Plan are limited
pursuant to section 415 of the Code shall be eligible to participate under the Excess Plan. In no event shall an Employee who is not
entitled to benefits under the Basic Plan be eligible for a benefit under the Excess Plan.

(b)

Employees designated by the Board of Directors of the Employer, or the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors, who form
“a select group of management or highly compensated employees" (within the meaning of Title I of ERISA), who are participating in
the Basic Plan and whose benefits under the Basic Plan are limited by section 401(a)(17) of the Code, shall be eligible to participate
under the Executive Retirement Plan. In no event shall an Employee who is not entitled to benefits under the Basic Plan be eligible
for a benefit under the Executive Retirement Plan.
ARTICLE 5: AMOUNT OF EXCESS PLAN BENEFIT

The benefit payable to an eligible Employee or his beneficiary or beneficiaries under the Excess Plan shall be the Actuarial Equivalent of the
excess, if any, of:
(a)

the benefit, expressed as a single life annuity, which would have been payable to such Employee or on his behalf to his Beneficiary
or Eligible Spouse, as the case may be, from the Basic Plan, if the provisions of the Basic Plan were administered without regard to
the maximum amount of retirement income limitations of section 415 of the Code, over

(b)

the benefit which is in fact payable to such Employee or on his behalf to his Beneficiary or Eligible Spouse under the Basic Plan,
expressed as a single life annuity.

Benefits payable under the Excess Plan shall be computed in accordance with the foregoing and with the objective that the benefits payable
under the Excess Plan and the Basic Plan should total the amount which would have been payable solely under the Basic Plan had section 415 of
the Code not been applicable thereto.
ARTICLE 6: AMOUNT OF EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN BENEFITS
The benefits payable to an eligible Employee or his beneficiary or beneficiaries under the Executive Retirement Plan shall be the Actuarial
Equivalent of the excess, if any, of the benefit, expressed as a single life annuity, which would have been payable to such Employee or on his
behalf to his Beneficiary or Eligible Spouse, as the case may be, from the Basic Plan, if the provisions of the Basic Plan were administered
without regard to either the maximum amount of retirement income limitation of section 415 of the Code or the maximum compensation
limitation of section 401(a)(17) of the Code, over the sum of:
(a)

the benefit which is in fact payable to such Employee or on his behalf to his Beneficiary or Eligible Spouse under the Basic Plan,
expressed as a single life annuity, and

(b)

the amount of the Excess Plan benefit (expressed as a single life annuity), if any, which is in fact payable under Article 5 of this Plan.

Benefits payable under this Article 6 shall be computed in accordance with the foregoing and with the objective that the benefit payable under
the Excess Plan, the Executive Retirement Plan, and the Basic Plan should total the amount which would have been payable solely under the
Basic Plan had neither section 415 nor section 401(a)(17) of the Code been applicable thereto.
ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT OF BENEFITS
The total benefit payable to an Employee or on his behalf under Articles 5 and 6 shall be payable in accordance with the following paragraphs:
(a)

Upon commencement of participation in this Plan, an Employee shall select a form for the payment of benefits from this Plan, from
among the forms described in paragraph (f). The Employee shall name a beneficiary or beneficiaries consistent with the form of
benefit selected, who need not be the Employee's Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary under the Basic Plan. In the absence of a contrary
selection by the Employee, the form for the payment of benefits from this Plan shall be a single life annuity under subparagraph (f)
(1).

(b)

Upon commencement of participation in this Plan, an Employee shall select a date for the commencement of benefits from this Plan,
which shall not be earlier than the date of the

Employee's termination of employment with the Employer, nor later than the Employee's Normal Retirement Date (if his
employment has terminated before such date). In the absence of a contrary designation by the Employee, and subject to the 6-month
delay imposed on Specified Employees by paragraph (g) below, the Employee's benefit commencement date shall be the later of the
Employee's Normal Retirement Date or date of termination of employment.
(c)

An Employee may change a beneficiary designation, a form of benefit payment, or a benefit commencement date, at any time prior to
the commencement of the payment of benefits from the Plan; provided however, that no change in the form of benefit or benefit
commencement date shall become effective until one year after the change is made and, provided further, that no change in form or
commencement date shall become effective after the Employee's termination of employment, death, or commencement of benefits.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, effective on and after January 1, 2005, if an Employee elects to change his or her benefit
commencement date, or to change the form of benefit payment elected, to change the timing of payment for a benefit from this Plan
(other than a benefit payable as result of the Employee’s death), the first benefit payment made pursuant to such subsequent election
may not be made prior to the end of the period of 5 years from the benefit commencement date on which the Employee’s benefit
payments were scheduled to commence under the Employee’s prior election.

(d)

Notwithstanding anything in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) to the contrary, an eligible Employee may elect, in addition to any other
elections he has made under the Plan, to receive his benefit from the Plan on the later of:
(1)

his Disability Retirement Date (as such term is defined under the Basic Plan); or

(2)

the date his coverage under a Disability Contract (as such term is defined under the Basic Plan) terminates.

Such election shall be effective only if the Employee is not Disabled at the time the election is made, and the Employee is eligible for
a Disability Retirement Benefit from the Basic Plan after his employment terminates.
The amount of Excess and Executive Retirement Plan benefits payable under this paragraph (d) will be determined in accordance
with Article 5 and Article 6 and Section 4.04 of Basic Plan.
Effective on and after January 1, 2005, an Employee may elect to receive a disability benefit from the Plan under this paragraph
(d) only if the Administrator determines that the Employee:
(1)

is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment
which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, or

(2)

has been receiving income replacement benefits for at least 3 months a long-term disability plan maintained by the Employer
by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which is expected to result in death or to last for a
continuous period of not less than 12 months.

This restriction in the preceding sentence is imposed to ensure that those benefits payable from this Plan on account of disability
which are subject to Section 409A of the Code will be paid only if the disability constitutes a “disability” for purposes of
Section 409A(a)(2)(C) of the Code, Treasury Regulation Section 1.409-3(i)(4) or any other guidance promulgated under Code
Section 409A(a)(2). Accordingly, such restriction shall not apply to the Employee’s Grandfathered Benefits, if any.
(e)

No Employee or Employee's beneficiary shall be entitled to benefits from this Supplemental Plan unless the Employee is vested
under the Basic Plan and has terminated employment with the Employer.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, benefit payments shall begin on the April 1 following the year in which an Employee
attains age 70-1/2, if the Employee remains employed on that April 1 and is required to commence his benefits under the Basic Plan
on that date. The benefits payable from this Plan shall be paid in the form then in effect for the benefits that would have been payable
to the Employee under this Plan had he retired on April 1 of that year.
(f)

The forms in which benefits are payable under the Plan are the following, all of which shall be the Actuarial Equivalent of the total
benefit payable under Articles 5 and 6:
(1)

A single life annuity, under which the Employee shall receive equal monthly payments for his lifetime only. If the Employee
dies prior to the commencement of benefit payments, no benefits shall be payable under this form.

(2)

A joint and survivor annuity, under which the Employee shall receive reduced monthly payments for his lifetime, and a
beneficiary designated by the Employee shall receive a percentage (not less than 50% or more than 100%) of the payments
previously received by the Employee, for the beneficiary's lifetime. If the Employee dies prior to the commencement of
benefit payments, payments to the beneficiary shall begin with the Employee's death. If the beneficiary dies prior to the
commencement of benefit payments to the Employee, the Employee may designate a new beneficiary.

(3)

A life annuity with ten years guaranteed, under which an Employee shall receive reduced monthly payments for his lifetime,
and a beneficiary designated by the Employee will receive payments until the tenth anniversary of the date payments began, if
the Employee dies before such tenth anniversary. If the Employee dies prior to the commencement of benefit payments,
payments to the beneficiary shall begin with the Employee's death. If the beneficiary dies before the Employee, the Employee
may designate a new beneficiary.

(4)

A single-sum payment. If the Employee dies prior to receipt of the single sum, it shall be paid to his beneficiary.

For purposes of this Article 7, and all other provisions of the Plan, "Actuarial Equivalent" shall have the same meaning as that set forth in the
Basic Plan.
(g) Effective on and after January 1, 2005, if the Employee is a “Specified Employee” [as defined below] at the time a benefit under this
Plan would otherwise be payable to an Employee by reason of his or her termination of employment with the Employer, payment of that portion
of the benefits payable to the Employee under this Plan which exceeds his or her Grandfathered Benefit (if any) shall not be made or commence
until six months after the date of the Employee’s separation from service with the Employer [as the term “separation from service” is defined in
Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code and Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder], or, if earlier the date of death of the Employee. Any
benefit payments not made to the Employee during this six-month period shall instead be paid to the Employee, along with interest at the rate of
five percent per annum, six months and one day after the date of the Employee’s separation from service with the Employer (or as soon
thereafter as may be reasonably practical).
For purposes of this paragraph (g), the term “Specified Employee” shall mean any Employee of the Employer who was treated as a “key
employee” of the Employer, within the meaning of Code section 416(i) (without regard to paragraph (5) thereof) for purposes of top-heavy
testing of the Basic Plan as of December 31 of the prior calendar year (the “specified employee identification date”). An Employee will be
considered a “key employee” if he or she is (i) a 5-percent owner of the Employer’s common stock; or (ii) an officer of the Employer with
annual compensation from the Employer of $130,000 or more, or (iii) a 1-percent owner of the Employer’s common stock with annual
compensation from the Employer of $150,000 or more (or such higher annual limit as may be in effect for years subsequent to 2005 pursuant to
cost-of-living adjustments under Section 416(i) of the Code). This paragraph (g) shall not effect benefit payments to any Employee terminating
during a period in which no stock of the Employer is publicly traded on an established securities market.
(h) If an Employee had already earned a vested benefit under this Plan by December 31, 2004 the restrictions imposed by paragraph (g), or
by the last paragraphs of paragraphs (c) and (d) above, shall not apply to that portion, if any, of the Employee’s benefit under the Plan which
does not exceed his or her Grandfathered

Benefit. For this purpose, the term “Grandfathered Benefit” means that portion of an Employee’s benefits under this Plan which had already
been earned by December 31, 2004 and was fully vested and not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture on that date.
(i) For purposes of this Article VI of the Plan, the Committee shall determine when an Employee has retired or otherwise terminated his or
her employment with the Employer based on such facts and circumstances as the Committee determines to be relevant, provided that, effective
on and after January 1, 2008, if an Employee continues to perform services for the Employer after his or her termination date (whether as a
director, consultant or part-time employee), the Employee shall not be considered to have terminated from employment with the Employer
unless it is anticipated in good faith that the level of services Employee will provide to Employer thereafter will be reduced to less than 50
percent of the average level of services the Employee provided to the Employer during the 36 month period preceding the termination date.
ARTICLE 8: EMPLOYEES' RIGHTS
An Employee's contractual rights under this Plan to vested benefits shall be the same as his contractual rights under the Basic Plan. Benefits
payable under this Plan shall be general, unsecured obligations of the Employer, to be paid by the Employer from its own funds, and such
payments shall not (a) impose any obligation upon the Pension Fund under the Basic Plan; (b) be paid from the Pension Fund under the Basic
Plan; or (c) have any effect whatsoever upon the Basic Plan or the payment of benefits from the Pension Fund under the Basic Plan. No
Employee or his Beneficiary or Eligible Spouse under the Basic Plan or beneficiary under this Supplemental Plan shall have any title to or
beneficial ownership in any assets which the Company may earmark to pay benefits hereunder.
An Employee shall lose his contractual rights to benefits under this Plan if he is terminated for cause, or if such Employee resigns in order to
avoid being terminated for cause. Termination for cause, for this purpose, means discharge for reason of the Employee's personal dishonesty,
willful misconduct, self-dealing to the detriment of the Employer, violation of any confidentiality requirements, or violation of any employment
contract. The Committee has the sole discretion under the Plan to determine whether an Employee has been terminated for cause, or resigned to
avoid being terminated for cause.
ARTICLE 9: CLAIMS AND APPEAL PROCEDURES
The purpose of the claims and appeal provisions set forth in this Article is to secure the speedy, inexpensive resolution of all disputes over Plan
benefits and rights granted by the Plan. These provisions shall be liberally construed so as to avoid litigation and its attendant expenses. Each
person who claims entitlement to any right or benefit under the Plan ("claimant") may submit a claim with respect to that benefit or right. All
claims shall be submitted in writing to the Committee and shall be accompanied by such information and documentation as the Committee
determines are required to make a ruling on the claim. Upon receipt of a claim hereunder, the Committee shall consider the claim and shall
render a decision and communicate the same to the claimant. The Committee shall render a decision within 90 days after receipt of the claim,
unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim. If such an extension of time for processing is required,
written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the claimant prior to the termination of the initial 90-day period. In no event shall such
extension exceed a period of 90 days from the end of such initial period. The extension notice shall indicate the special circumstances requiring
an extension of time and the date by which the Committee expects to render a decision. In the event that the claim is denied in whole or in part,
the claimant shall be given notice in writing, which shall set forth the following in a manner reasonably calculated to be understood by the
claimant:
(a)

the specific reason(s) for the denial;

(b)

specific reference to pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based;

(c)

a description of any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such
material or information is necessary;

(d)

an explanation of the Plan's appeal procedure.

The failure of the Committee to render a decision on a claim within the time specified shall be deemed to be a denial of such claim.

Any claim under this claims procedure must be submitted within 12 months from the earlier of (i) the date on which the claimant learned of facts
sufficient to enable him to formulate such claim, or (ii) the date on which the claimant reasonably should have been expected to learn of facts
sufficient to enable him to formulate such claim.
When a claim has been or is deemed denied, the claimant (hereinafter referred to as appellant) shall have the right within 60 days after receipt of
written notice thereof or the date the claim is deemed denied to file an appeal with the Committee and to go through the appeal procedure herein
set forth. All appeals shall be in writing, and shall set forth the reasons why the appellant believes the decision denying his claim is erroneous.
The appellant may be represented by counsel, or by other representative authorized in writing by appellant in a manner specified by the
Committee, and appellant or his counsel or duly authorized representative may review pertinent documents and may submit issues and
comments in writing to the Committee. The expense of a paid representative shall be borne by the appellant. Within 60 days after such written
appeal is received, the Committee shall conduct a full and fair review of the entire claim. The Committee shall render a decision on the appeal in
writing not later than 60 days after receipt of the written appeal, unless special circumstances (such as the need to hold a hearing, which shall be
determined by the Committee) require an extension, of time for processing, in which case a decision shall be rendered as soon as possible, but
not later than 120 days after receipt of a written appeal. If special circumstances require an extension of time for processing, the Committee shall
so notify the appellant prior to the commencement of the extension. If the Committee does not render a decision within 60 days (120 days if
special circumstances arise), the appeal shall be deemed denied. The decision shall include specific references to provisions of this Plan and of
law and shall be written in a manner reasonably calculated to be understood by the appellant.
The decision of the Committee shall be final and shall be binding upon the appellant, his beneficiaries, heirs, and assigns and all other persons
claiming by, through or under him. A failure to file a claim and an appeal in the manner and within the time limits set forth herein shall be
deemed a failure by the aggrieved party to exhaust his administrative remedies and shall constitute a waiver of the rights or benefits sought to be
established under the Plan. No legal action to recover Plan benefits or to enforce or to clarify rights under the Plan shall be commenced under
section 502(a)(1)(B) of ERISA, or under any other provisions of law, whether or not statutory, unless and until the claimant first shall have
exhausted the claims and appeal procedures available to him hereunder in this Article. A claimant must raise all issues and present all theories
relating to his claim to the Committee at one time. Otherwise, the claimant shall be deemed to have abandoned forever all issues and theories not
raised and presented to the Committee.
Any suit brought to contest a decision of the Committee shall be filed in a court of competent jurisdiction within 1 year from receipt of written
notice of the Committee's final decision or from the date the appeal is deemed denied, and any suit not filed within this 1-year limitation period
shall be dismissed by the court. Service of legal process shall be made upon the Plan by service upon the Committee.
All state law causes of action that arise out of or relate to the Executive Retirement Plan portion of this Plan or to entitlement to rights or benefits
under the Executive Retirement Plan portion of the Plan shall be deemed to have been preempted by section 514 of ERISA.
In any suit contesting a decision of the Committee, all issues of fact shall be tried by the court and not by a jury. No evidence may be introduced
in court which was not previously presented to the Committee and no evidence may be introduced to modify or contradict the terms of the Plan
document.
The Committee shall have full discretionary authority to interpret and apply the terms of this Plan document and other relevant documents and
relevant provisions of law and deference shall be afforded the Committee's decisions. This grant of authority shall be broadly construed and shall
include the authority to find facts, to reach conclusions of law, to interpret and apply ambiguous terms, and to supply missing terms reasonably
necessary to resolution of claims and appeals. No finding of fact by the Committee shall be set aside by a court unless the party contesting the
finding shall prove by clear and convincing evidence that the finding is arbitrary and capricious. No conclusion of law reached by the Committee
shall be reversed by a court unless the party contesting the conclusion shall demonstrate that the Committee is guilty of manifest disregard of
law.
In any suit over Plan benefits or rights, recovery shall be limited to the amount of benefits found due, without interest, or to specific enforcement
of rights established under the Plan, and shall not include any other damages whether denominated incidental, special, consequential, collateral,
compensatory, exemplary, punitive or whatever.

The Committee may issue, or cause to be issued, from time to time statements to employees, participants, retirees or beneficiaries indicating
eligibility, service or other data regarding their Plan benefits. If any such person wishes to challenge the accuracy of such data or of any
information issued in response to a request within the terms of section 105(a) of ERISA, the person shall do so in the manner and within the time
limits set forth above in this Article.
After termination of the Plan, the Committee may direct a final determination of the rights and benefits of some or all persons having an interest
in the Plan. The determination with respect to any person may be mailed to that person at his last known address and that person may be given
90 days within which to challenge the determination through the claims and appeal procedures set forth in this Article. The mailing of a copy of
a determination to a person at his last known address shall be deemed constructive receipt by that person of a copy of the determination. Any
determination not challenged through the claims and appeals procedures shall govern a person's rights under the Plan, and the rights of any
person claiming by, through or under him.
ARTICLE 10: AMENDMENT AND DISCONTINUANCE
The Employer expects to continue this Plan indefinitely, but reserves the right to amend or discontinue it if, in its sole judgment, such a change is
deemed necessary or desirable. However, if the Employer should amend or discontinue this Plan, the Employer shall be liable for any benefits
accrued under this Plan (determined on the basis of each employee's presumed termination of employment as of the date of such amendment or
discontinuance) as of the date of such action. Any action to amend or terminate the Plan shall be taken by the Employer's Board of Directors, or
any person or persons the Board has designated to take such actions on its behalf. When making decisions to amend or terminate the Plan, the
Employer, and its employees, officers, directors and agents act in a corporate and not a fiduciary capacity.
In the event of termination of this Plan, the Committee may, at its option, accelerate the payment of all benefits payable under the Plan. In the
event the Committee decides to accelerate these payments, each Employee participating in the Plan shall be paid an immediate single sum equal
to the present value of the single-life annuity he would have received from this Plan, had he retired on the date of Plan termination, and begun
receiving benefits immediately thereafter. No employee, supervisor, officer, or director of the Employer has authority to modify the terms of the
Plan, except in writing through the Plan's amendment procedure. No representation contrary to the terms of the Plan and the formal amendments
thereto shall be binding on the Plan, the Committee, or the Employer.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective on and after January 1, 2005, no part of an Employee’s benefits under this Plan may be paid to any
Employee or beneficiary on an accelerated basis as the result of any termination or amendment of the Plan except to the extent that:
(a)

the benefit being paid prior to the Employee’s scheduled benefit commencement date is limited to the Employee’s Grandfathered
Benefits (if any);

(b)

the Employer is terminating the Plan in connection with a change in corporate control described in Treasury Regulation
Section 1.409A-3(i)(5) (or any subsequent guidance under Section 409A of the Code) within the period beginning 30 days prior to
and ending 12 months after the effective date of the change in corporate control; or

(c)

the Plan is being terminated and liquidated with the explicit approval of a U.S. bankruptcy court;

(d)

the Employer is irrevocably terminating the Plan and any other supplemental executive retirement plans of the Employer and paying
out all benefits owed under the Plan no earlier than 12 months and no later than 24 months after the date the Employer terminates the
Plan (as permitted under Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(j)(4) or any subsequent guidance issued under Section 409A of the
Code).
ARTICLE 11: RESTRICTIONS ON ASSIGNMENT

The interest of an Employee or his beneficiary or beneficiaries may not be sold, transferred, assigned, or encumbered in any manner, either
voluntarily or involuntarily, and any attempt so to anticipate, alienate, sell, transfer, assign, pledge, encumber, or charge the same shall be null
and void; neither shall the benefits hereunder be liable for or subject to the debts, contracts, liabilities, engagement, or torts of any person to
whom such benefits or funds are payable, nor shall they be subject to garnishment, attachment, or other legal or equitable process nor shall they
be an asset in bankruptcy, except that no amount shall be payable hereunder until and unless any and all amounts representing debts or other
obligations owed to the Employer or any affiliate of the Employer by the Employee with respect to whom such amount would otherwise be
payable shall have been fully paid and satisfied.

ARTICLE 12: NATURE OF AGREEMENT
The adoption of this Plan and any setting aside of amounts by the Employer with which to discharge its obligations hereunder shall not be
deemed to create a trust; legal and equitable title to any funds so set aside shall remain in the Employer, and any recipient of benefits hereunder
shall have no security or other interest in such funds. Any and all funds so set aside shall remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of
the Employer, present and future, and no payment shall be made under this Plan unless the Employer is then solvent. This provision shall not
require the Employer to set aside any funds, but the Employer may set aside such funds if it chooses to do so.
ARTICLE 13: CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT
Nothing contained herein shall be construed as conferring upon any Employee the right to continue in the employ of the Employer in any
capacity.
ARTICLE 14: BINDING ON EMPLOYER, EMPLOYEES AND THEIR SUCCESSORS
This Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Employer, its successors and assigns and the Employee and his heirs, executors,
administrators and legal representatives.
ARTICLE 15. PAYMENTS MADE BY MISTAKE
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, an eligible Employee or beneficiary is entitled only to those benefits provided by the Plan and
promptly shall return any payment made by mistake of fact or law. The Committee may offset the future benefit of any recipient who refuses to
return an erroneous payment, in addition to pursuing any other remedies provided by law.
ARTICLE 16. LAWS GOVERNING
This Plan shall be construed in accordance with and governing by the laws of the State of Florida (but without regard to Florida’s laws on the
conflict of laws), except to the extent that the Executive Retirement Plan is governed by ERISA.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , and as evidence of this amendment and restatement of the Superior Uniform Group, Inc. Supplemental
Pension Plan, Superior Uniform Group, Inc. has caused the same to be signed by its officers thereunto duly authorized, and its corporate seal to
be affixed thereto, the
day of
, 2008.
SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
Attest:
By:
Title:
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SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT WITH VESTING PROVISIONS
THIS INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT, dated the
day of
200_ is granted by Superior Uniform Group, Inc. (the
“Company”) to
, (the “Optionee”) pursuant to the Company’s 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan (the “Plan”).
WHEREAS, the Company believes it to be in the best interests of the Company, its subsidiaries and its shareholders for its officers and other key
employees to obtain or increase their stock ownership interest in the Company so that they will have a greater incentive to work for and manage
the Company’s affairs in such a way that its shares may become more valuable; and
WHEREAS, the Optionee is employed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries as an officer or other key employee and has been selected by
the Committee to receive an option;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the services to be performed by the Optionee, the Company and the Optionee
hereby agree as follows:
1. OPTION GRANT
Subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Plan, the Company grants to the Optionee an option to purchase a total of
shares of
Common Stock of the Company at a price of $
per share (100% of the Fair Market Value of the shares on the date of grant) . This
option is intended to qualify as an “incentive stock option” within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.
2. TIME OF EXERCISE
Subject to the termination provisions of paragraphs 3 and 4, the Optionee may purchase (
) of the option shares on or after
,
provided that the Optionee is an employee of the Company and its subsidiaries on such date. If the Optionee terminates employment from the
Company and its subsidiaries, only those option shares for which the right to purchase has accrued as of the date of such termination may be
purchased after such termination (subject to the provisions of paragraphs 3 and 4). If the Optionee takes an unpaid leave of absence, then the
Committee may defer the dates on which the Optionee may first purchase the option shares to take into account such leave of absence.
3. TERMINATION OF OPTION
The Optionee may not exercise this option after, and this option will terminate without notice to the Optionee on, the earlier of:
a. Three (3) months after the date of the termination of the Optionee’s employment from the Company and its subsidiaries for any reason
other than for Cause or due to Disability or death, provided that the Optionee has been employed by the Company for two years following the
date of this agreement;
b. On the date the Company or one of its subsidiaries terminates the Optionee’s employment for Cause;
c. Twelve (12) months after the date of the termination of the Optionee’s employment from the Company and its subsidiaries by reason of
death or Disability, provided that the Optionee has been employed by the Company for two years following the date of this agreement; or
d. Five (5) years from the date of this agreement.
For purposes of this paragraph 3, termination shall occur at 11:59 P.M. (Eastern Time) on the applicable date described above, except that if the
Optionee is terminated for Cause, termination shall occur immediately at the time of such termination.

If the Optionee terminates employment from the Company and its subsidiaries, before the expiration of two years from the date of this
agreement, the Optionee may not exercise this option after, and this option will terminate without notice to the Optionee immediately at the time
of such termination of the Optionee’s employment from the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, if the Optionee takes a military, sick leave
or other bona fide leave of absence from the Company and its subsidiaries, the Optionee will be considered to have terminated employment from
the Company and its subsidiaries on the later of (i) the 91 st day of such leave, or (ii) the last day that the Optionee’s right to reemployment
following the end of such leave is guaranteed by law or contract with the Company or a subsidiary.
4. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE
If the Company or one of its subsidiaries terminates the Optionee’s employment for Cause, then the Committee may determine that any exercises
of this option within the six (6) month period prior to such termination will be deemed of no force and effect and the Committee may pursue any
remedy or proceeding available to compel the Optionee to return to the Company any profits the Optionee realized (directly or indirectly) from
exercising this option during such period.
5. EXERCISE PROCEDURES
a. The Optionee may exercise this option in whole or in part only with respect to any shares for which the right to exercise shall have
accrued pursuant to paragraph 2 and only so long as paragraph 3 does not prohibit such exercise.
b. This option may be exercised by delivering a written notice of option exercise to the Company’s Corporate Secretary at Seminole,
Florida, accompanied by payment of the purchase price and such additional amount (if any) determined by the Corporate Secretary as necessary
to satisfy the Company’s tax withholding obligations, and such other documents or representations as the Company may reasonably request to
comply with securities, tax or other laws then applicable to the exercise of the option. Delivery may be made in person, by nationally-recognized
delivery service that guarantees overnight delivery, or by facsimile. A notice of option exercise that is received by the Corporate Secretary after
the date of termination (as provided in paragraph 3) shall be null and void.
c. The Optionee may pay the purchase price in one or more of the following forms:
i. a check payable to the order of the Company for the purchase price of the shares being purchased; or
ii. delivery of shares of Common Stock (including by attestation) that the Optionee has owned for at least six (6) months and that
have a Fair Market Value (determined on the date of delivery) equal to the purchase price of the shares being purchased; or
iii. delivery (including by facsimile) to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at Seminole, Florida, of an executed irrevocable
option exercise form together with irrevocable instructions, in a form acceptable to the Company, to a broker-dealer to sell or margin a
sufficient portion of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this option and deliver the sale or margin loan proceeds
directly to the Company to pay for the exercise price.
d. The Optionee may satisfy any tax withholding obligation of the Company arising from the exercise of this option, in whole or in part, by
paying such tax obligation in cash or by check made payable to the Company, or by electing to have the Company withhold shares of Common
Stock having a Fair Market Value on the date of exercise equal to the amount required to be withheld, subject to such rules as the Committee
may adopt. In any event, the Company reserves the right to withhold from any compensation otherwise payable to the Optionee such amount as
the Company determines is necessary to satisfy the Company’s tax withholding obligations arising from the exercise of this option.

6. DEFINITIONS
a. “Cause” means termination of employment as a result of (i) the failure of the Optionee to perform or observe any of the terms or
provisions of any written employment agreement between the Optionee and the Company or its subsidiaries or, if no written agreement exists,
the gross dereliction of the Optionee’s duties with respect to the Company; (ii) the failure of the Optionee to comply fully with the lawful
directives of the Board of Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable, or the officers or supervisory employees to whom the
Optionee is reporting; (iii) the Optionee’s dishonesty, misconduct, misappropriation of funds, or disloyalty or disparagement of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries, or its management or employees; or (iv) other proper cause determined in good faith by the Committee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if the Optionee is subject to a written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries that contains a definition of “Cause” that is
different than the definition provided herein, the definition of “Cause” in such other agreement shall apply in lieu of the definition provided
herein.
b. “Disability” means permanently and totally disabled within the meaning of section 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.
7. OPTIONS AS COLLATERAL
The Optionee may not assign or mortgage this option, or pledge this option as any type of security or collateral. Any attempted assignment,
mortgage or pledge of this option in violation of this paragraph 7 will be null and void and have no legal effect.
8. NON-TRANSFERABILITY; DEATH
a. Except as the Committee otherwise provides, the Optionee may not transfer this option other than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution and only the Optionee may exercise this option during his or her lifetime. However, if the Committee determines that the Optionee is
unable to exercise this option as a result of incapacity or Disability, then the Committee may permit the Optionee’s guardian or an individual
who has obtained an appropriate power of attorney to exercise this option on behalf of the Optionee. In such an event, neither the Committee nor
the Company will be liable for any losses resulting from such exercise or from the disposition of shares acquired upon such exercise.
b. If the Optionee dies while this option is outstanding, then the Optionee’s estate or the person to whom this option passes by will or the
laws of descent and distribution may exercise this option in the manner described in paragraph 5, but only within a period of (i) twelve
(12) months after the Optionee’s death or (ii) five (5) years from the date of this agreement, whichever period is shorter. In such event, this
option shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable immediately prior to the Optionee’s death, provided that
for purposes of this Agreement, the term “Optionee” as used in paragraphs 7, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 shall be deemed to refer to the person(s) who
has(ve) the right to exercise the option after the Optionee’s death. The Company disclaims any obligation to provide notice to a any person who
has the right to exercise the option of circumstances triggering termination of this option.
9. REGISTRATION
If the Company is advised by its counsel that shares deliverable upon exercise of this option are required to be registered under the Securities Act
of 1933 (“Act”) or any applicable state or foreign securities laws, or that delivery of the shares must be accompanied or preceded by a prospectus
meeting the requirements of that Act or such state or foreign securities laws, then the Company will use its best efforts to effect the registration
or provide the prospectus within a reasonable time following the Company’s receipt of written notice of option exercise relating to this option,
but delivery of shares by the Company may be deferred until the registration is effected or the prospectus is available. The Optionee shall have
no interest in shares covered by this option until certificates for the shares are issued.
10. ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGE OF CONTROL
The number and type of shares subject to this option and the option price may be adjusted, or this option may be assumed, cancelled or otherwise
changed, in the event of certain transactions, as provided in Section 14 of the Plan. Upon a change of control, as defined in the Plan, the
Optionee shall have the rights specified in Section 14 of the Plan.

11. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION
Except as provided in paragraph 10, no term or provision of this agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented orally, but only by an
instrument in writing signed by the party against which or whom the enforcement of the amendment, modification or supplement is sought.
12. LIMITED INTEREST
a. The Optionee shall have no rights as a shareholder as a result of the grant of the option until this option is exercised, the exercise price
and applicable withholding taxes are paid, and the shares issued thereunder.
b. The grant of this option shall not confer on the Optionee any right to continue as an employee, nor interfere in any way with the right of
the Company to terminate the Optionee at any time.
c. The grant of this option shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to make or authorize any
or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations, or other changes in the Company’s or any subsidiary’s capital structure or its business, or
any merger, consolidation or business combination of the Company or any subsidiary, or any issuance or modification of any term, condition, or
covenant of any bond, debenture, debt, preferred stock or other instrument ahead of or affecting the Common Stock or the rights of the holders of
Common Stock, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company or any subsidiary, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or
business or any other Company or subsidiary act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.
13. LIMITS ON INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS
To the extent that the aggregate Fair Market Value of the Common Stock subject to this option, plus any shares of Common Stock subject to
incentive stock options previously granted to the Optionee by the Company or any subsidiary, that are exercisable for the first time by the
Optionee during a single calendar year exceeds one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), this option as to any such excess shall be considered a
nonqualified stock option.
14. GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by the internal laws of the state of Florida as to all matters, including but not limited to matters of validity,
construction, effect, performance and remedies. Any legal action or proceeding with respect to the Plan or this option may only be brought and
determined in a court sitting in the County of Hillsborough, or the Federal District Court for the Middle District of Florida sitting in the County
of Hillsborough, in the State of Florida. The Company may require that the action or proceeding be determined in a bench trial.
ALL PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS OPTION IS GRANTED UNDER AND PURSUANT TO THE PLAN, WHICH SHALL
GOVERN ALL RIGHTS, INTERESTS, OBLIGATIONS, AND UNDERTAKINGS OF BOTH THE COMPANY AND THE OPTIONEE. ALL
CAPITALIZED TERMS NOT OTHERWISE DEFINED IN THIS OPTION SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS ASSIGNED TO SUCH TERMS
IN THE PLAN.
15. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this agreement is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, or would disqualify this option under any
law the Committee deems applicable, then such provision will be construed or deemed amended to conform to the applicable law, or if the
Committee determines that the provision cannot be construed or deemed amended without materially altering the intent of this agreement, then
the provision will be stricken and the remainder of this agreement will remain in full force and effect.
16. COUNTERPARTS
This agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original but all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer and the Optionee has executed
this Agreement all as of the day and date first above written.
SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
By Gerald M. Benstock
Chairman of the Board

[Optionee]
Social Security Number
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SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT, by Superior Uniform Group, Inc., a Florida corporation (the “Company”), and
, an employee of the
Company or an Affiliate (the “Participant”), sets forth the terms and conditions of the Stock Appreciation Right (“SAR”) granted to the
Participant under the Superior Uniform Group, Inc. 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan (the “Plan”).
1. Grant of SAR. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) has awarded to Participant an
SAR with respect to the common stock of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
2. General Terms of Participant’s SAR.
The number of Shares subject to this SAR (the “SAR Shares”) is:
The “Exercise Price” of each SAR Share is: $
per share, which may not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market
Value of the Stock on the Grant Date, unless otherwise determined by the Committee.
The “Grant Date” of this SAR is:
The “Expiration Date” of Participant’s right to exercise a SAR Share is 5:00 p.m. (EST) on the fifth (5 th ) anniversary of the Grant Date.
However, Participant’s right to exercise this SAR may terminate before the Expiration Date as discussed in Section 4 of this Agreement.
3. Conditions of Exercise.
a. Conditions of Exercise. Subject to the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, Participant may exercise the SAR only after the SAR
Shares are vested, and only before the Expiration Date or the termination date described in Section 4 of this Agreement.
b. Vesting of SAR Subject to the termination provisions of paragraph 4, the Participant's shares vest upon the date of the grant.
4. Termination of Employment. The following paragraphs apply in the event of Participant’s termination of employment from the Company or
an Affiliate prior to the Expiration Date. In no event, however, will the periods described in this Section 4 extend the term of the SAR beyond its
Expiration Date or beyond the date the SAR is otherwise cancelled pursuant to the terms of the Plan.
a.

Retirement, Death or Disability . If Participant: (i) dies while employed by the Company or an Affiliate or within the period when
an SAR could have otherwise been exercised by Participant; (ii) terminates his or her employment with the Company or an Affiliate
by reason of “permanent and total disability” (within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code); or (iii) terminates his or her
employment with the Company or an Affiliate as a result of Participant’s retirement, provided that the Company or Affiliate has
consented in writing to Participant’s retirement, then, in each such case, Participant, or Participant’s duly authorized representatives,
shall have the right, at any time within three (3) months after Participant’s death, disability or retirement, as the case may be, and
prior to the termination of the SAR pursuant to Section 3 above, to exercise any SAR to the extent such SAR was exercisable by
Participant immediately prior to Participant’s death, disability or retirement. In the discretion of the Committee, the three-month
period referenced in the immediately preceding sentence may be extended for a period of up to one year.

b.

Termination of Employment . During Participant’s life, an SAR shall be exercisable only by Participant and only before the date of
the termination of the Participant’s employment with the Company or an Affiliate, other than by reason of Participant’s death,
permanent

disability or retirement with the consent of the Company or an Affiliate as provided in Section 4(a) above, but only if and to the
extent the SAR was exercisable immediately prior to such termination, and subject to the provisions of Section 4(c) below.
c.

Limitations on Exercise of SAR . In no event may the SAR be exercised, in whole or in part, after five (5) years following the Grant
Date.

5. Exercise of SAR. Participant may exercise the SAR, to the extent the SAR Shares are vested, by delivering written notice to the Secretary of
the Company, on the form attached hereto, specifying the whole number of vested SAR Shares to which the notice relates.
Upon delivery of the notice of exercise, Participant will be entitled to a payment from the Company of an amount equal to the number of SAR
Shares specified in the notice multiplied by: (a) the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock (determined as of the date the Company receives
Participant’s notice of exercise form), reduced by (b) the Exercise Price for an SAR Share.
Payment will be made as soon as practicable after the Company processes Participant’s exercise. Payment will be made in shares of Stock
having a Fair Market Value (determined as of the date the Company receives Participant’s notice of exercise form) equal to the amount of the
payment due. Any fractional shares will be paid in cash. Participant’s payment may be reduced by an amount the Company or an Affiliate deems
necessary to satisfy its liability to withhold federal, state or local income taxes or other taxes due by reason of the exercise. Alternatively, the
Company or an Affiliate may reduce compensation that is otherwise payable to Participant by the amount the Company or an Affiliate deems
necessary to satisfy its liability to withhold federal, state or local income taxes or other taxes due by reason of the exercise.
6. Change of Control. Upon a Change of Control, the provisions of Section 14 of the Plan shall apply.
7. Failure to Enforce Not a Waiver. The failure of the Company to enforce at any time any provision of this SAR Agreement shall in no way
be a waiver of such provision or of any other provision hereof.
8. Participant Bound by Plan. Participant hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and agrees to be bound by all the terms and
provisions thereof. The terms of the Plan are expressly incorporated into this Agreement by reference and in the event of any conflict between
this Agreement and the Plan, the Plan shall govern. Any capitalized terms not defined herein will have the meanings given in the Plan. This
Agreement is subject to all of the terms, conditions and provisions of the Plan, including, without limitation, the Plan’s amendment provisions,
and to such rules, regulations and interpretations relating to the Plan or this Agreement as are adopted by the Committee and in effect from time
to time. By signing below, Participant agrees and accepts on behalf of himself or herself, and Participant’s heirs, legatees and legal
representatives, that all decisions or interpretations of the Committee with respect to the Plan or this Agreement are binding, conclusive and
final.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement on the

day of

200

SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.:
By
Its:
PARTICIPANT:

.

SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
NOTICE OF STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHT (SAR) EXERCISE
Participant is encouraged to consult Participant’s personal financial or tax advisor
prior to exercising Participant’s SAR.
Please complete and sign this form and send it to: the Secretary of the Corporation at 10055 Seminole Boulevard, Seminole, Florida 33772-2539
Or fax it to: 727-803-9623
An incomplete form may cause a delay in processing Participant’s SAR exercise.
PART 1: PARTICIPANT INFORMATION: Please complete the following:
Name:
Street Address:
City:

State:

Work Phone #: (

)-

Social Security #:

-

-

Zip Code:
Home Phone #: (

)-

-

-

PART 2: DESCRIPTION OF SAR SHARES BEING EXERCISED Please complete the following for th e SAR Shares to which this notice
relates.
Grant Date

Exercise Price

$
$
$
$
$

Number of Vested SAR Shares

PART 3: ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND SIGNATURE
I hereby acknowledge that I have received and read a copy of the Superior Uniform Group, Inc. 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan and the
prospectus for such plan, and understand the tax consequences of an exercise.
Signature:

Date:
******

To be completed by:
Received by:
Date received:

Exhibit 21.1
SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.
List of Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2008, the Registrant directly owned the following subsidiaries.
Fashion Seal Corporation
Superior Office Solutions
The Office Gurus LTDA De C.V., a subsidiary of Superior Office Solutions and Fashion Seal
Corporation

Las Vegas, Nevada
Las Vegas, Nevada
El Salvador

Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We have issued our report dated February 27, 2009, with respect to the consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report of
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of said
report in the Registration Statement of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. on Form S-8 (File No. 333-105906, effective June 6, 2003).
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Tampa, Florida
February 27, 2009

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Michael Benstock, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2009
/s/ Michael Benstock
Michael Benstock
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Andrew D. Demott, Jr., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2009
/s/ Andrew D. Demott, Jr.
Andrew D. Demott, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer

Exhibit 32.1
Written Statement of the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Superior Uniform Group,
Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ Michael Benstock
Michael Benstock,
Chief Executive Officer
February 27, 2009

Exhibit 32.2
Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Senior Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief
Financial Officer of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Annual Report on Form
10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.
/s/ Andrew D. Demott, Jr.
Andrew D. Demott, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer
February 27, 2009

